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Vision, Mission, Values

[ gain and maintain leadership in the industries it competes in by producing
the hest.quality products with lowest possible cost.

To give the best returns to sharcholders by optimalallocation of resources to the

products and markets the company'competes in

To provide the besevalie products and services to its customers through
investment in technology, hunian resources, operational systems and processes.

To provide the best working environment (o its employees and pravide
opportunities to them for enhancing their skills.

To work with its farmers, suppliers and distributors as partners developing their
expertise and profitability.

o pursue environment friendly policies and effectively and efficiently use all
energy resources aiming for zero waste and a clean healthy environment in its
vicinity

To be a socially responsible corporate citizen supporting education, health,
enviconment and socio economic development of the society.
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it 15 2 listed comypany and i shars
are traced onall the three stock ex hanges of Pakistan

shadargan Mills Li

Praily quotes on 1 mpany s stock can be obained

Irowmy Feading Shakargzn| is lsted under
&

LT L

sugar amd Allied

Financial analysts, Stock brokers, interested investors
and finamcial me

i desiring information about

Shakargani” shoubd contact Tarig Aleem at Company's
registered Office, Lahore.Tel: +92.42-5871738
FOE 52110 |-Gp2ay2

Email: aricgleemi shakargan]. com. pk

Inquirics concerning lost stock certificates, dividend
payment, change of address, venification of mansier deeds
andd share 1
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Statement of Value Addition

{Bupees in Million)
20 2005




Sugarcane hreeding to evolve fenilizer responsive, disease resistant and stress tolerince varieties with high

ACTOAE CONEet
o investigane the agronomic problems of sugarcane production

1able agriculiure

Rizszairg b aiidl devels piment on wtilisation of biomass, effluents and {is vse for sos

1o relate these o crop managoment

I stady soils in suparcan producing  arcas

wation of clite chones

re proqragation e rgid moul
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rarcane seis, sucrose production, ranshcadon and storage
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To condiuct basic resesarch on g
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o provide educational courses in various aspects of sugarcane growing for farmers

T wate and exchange information and materdal with Research Organizations (n Pakistn amd other

ILTHLTTE S

o improve technology of sugarcane manufacmeing by improsing process and milling eficiency







1518 clomes were sebected ot of 45374 0 hae obtained o delenber Hiogima Canal

nal seedlings g from car

{ size, on an are

Pt USABSES, Aust The progeny clones were

pores g automn 2004

e, anil from 9353 privida

sifvance ¢l
d {ral

The phot was 20 x 2.5 feer of Scows, Advanced chones were caltivared on 4.5

clomes, 337 were sel

seres, during the vear

| trials (table-1). Semidfinal clooves wionlid

AL sl W, amongst 4% advanced clones, 13 were sele

I ted For semi-
e further studied lor pemmiination [

natity, tillering potentiol, stped cane vield, mamnty memld, sucrose cont

ancl resistance against major diseases like red ro, cust, smut and pokah b
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Table-1  Status of Germplasm under
Different Selection Stages at SSRI Jhang

sSelection Seedling Year Source of fuzz Year
Stage 20032004
Stage-5 Final elones J
i SUBCHSG, Davis Labomtory Townsville, Australia “ !
Stage-4 Semi-final Clones
L SU9HSG, ApCenler Houma, USA §
i, SHAMIHOS0 '.:,;['n_'ui-;.' Hourm;, LS 10
Total 13
Stage-3 Advanced clones
L. S2INFTHo8G, AgCenter, Howma, USA )
. SZ001CEPSG, USDA, Canal Point, USA 13 -
i, SHMINSG, SASAEX, Nmasl, South Africa 10 o
v, SA0ES0, BSES, CQueensland, Australia i)
v, S2001CSSG, Davis Laboratory Townsville, Australia 156 5
vi. 52002 Ho%0, ApCenter Houmea, USA 200
Total 627
Stage-2 Progeny clones
i, S2MEHoS0, ApCenter, Houma, LSA 1518
Total 1518
Stage-1 Original secdlings
L S200CES0, Davis Laboratory Townsville, Australia 420
il SAMCESG, USDA, Canal Point, LESA 12426 5
Foual 50852 .
AL stae-Y, 2 final clonis vie: CSS0668 & CSS0G-076 wen Ecpi hor Bl trizls {imhée-1). Baoch the Promisifg vanctics
have shown b peerlor i Il 5 quality alome with resistance against major discases, These final
elones were n d in conrdinated ls. Extensive testing and secd muldplicatdon was in progress. Asro-coonomi
traits and periodic trend of sugar recovery percent candg of C85G-608 & CS5G-6T0 during the yvears 2000-2004. It
m s given in table-2 & Fig. 1, respectively
a




Shakarganj Sugar Research Institute

Table-2. Agro-Economic traits of CSS8G-668
and CS5G-676 at final stage (2001-2004)
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Table-3 Screening of germplasm for combined
ainst major diseases

Sr.  Origin No. of Resistance 1o
Mo Clones  Redrot Rost P boeng St
I Promising Varietics S9aNSG series i s 3 ) a)
2 Final clomes SU8CS5G Eries 7 ! & g 1
3 Semifinal clones SO9HOSG series 10 3 ] i 7
I '|||.|I-.I'.!:'|':||';|,x"\._-'II|||II|..:\'..;.|-r|g_-x 15 1 0 21 17
5 Advance lnes S I HoSG series 033 447 524 04 121
& Progeny clones 52002 HoSG series 1194 ] 721 Lt 5 174
T SCRI Mardan Varieties 2 4 3 i 3
B SR Faisalabad Varieties T i 5 i 3
% Habib Sugar, Nawabshah Varieties 3 1 ki Z i
10 Sri Lanka chomes (51, scries) 2 | 2 1 2
Total 2197 651 1295 1122 938

Combined

651







.-—_g.,

o

Y

vr, rosil 1 rand

I
Bl Clin III'\-'\-!III'U\-IIII\.‘-I'\-'.I'II

This ivew r conserving the flora and |
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LIS il resgent
1 Trecs 13l
2 Shrube 34
i . Hierbs 12
£ Chmbers Z1
:] Cactus 3l
i Junipers 7

Toral 356

A thown Iorest s a Rescarch Instarute o comserve the five endlar

n dlevelop kargan) &

|
lersicles { Wan), Tamarix aphyila (Frash), apparis decichua (Kacer),

erod plant

species s Salvid coacia arabica (Desi Kikar)

ind Prosopas cinerarni

Gt flower progect wias starmed i fune 2004

lovwbng mvpes of cut flowers are included in this project

5 5 hspaclistra
. Heltanhias 5 Armarylhs
5 CilliiHiuluis i1 Larnanica

This project is saill in s infia

fiechnical guidance about Agronomic tralts of vanicties and production technology was provided 1o cane growers of

ing viedd awned guadity of ¢

SML Objecive was o !|"‘"f-" in ¢nh crop. Agr mic trials o develop low oost

||:'-.u|.|:'||-|||||.||' i, Sall

gy were comducted, which comprised increasing efficacy of Rertilizer, water managi

12e it anch determination o

tagement, integrated pest mi arvest [oses




i cHHNE BECST ST inclading books, manuzls, proceedines
I ! 3 1l Vit adcks were added b
dandd Levelopment ACDviies on Saegar | Lo Ctive 15t peowicle ¢

IECHIVE WAS 10 give: OPPROTUNEY 1o CHENTESES i
hawe a through discussion on various spec ol R & D
Ctivities o sugar crops. Fomy-live scientisgs parmicpated
n the workshop from- sixieen Besearch Institutes from
ulbover the country, Twelve resesrch mantscripis were
presenicd and discussEd The views library of $5H1
sCienliss WL'THFI.'.:—I]-I:E
Kescarch pap
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hur quality policy stems from our vision and is 1o maintain indusos leadership
and customer satisfaction through production of nigh quality s
products at lowest cost, using environment fr

working conditions. We run our business with inte grity and professionalism

ind believe in continual improvement and 2 fair deal for our investors

customers, supplices and emplovees
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Governing
Principles




Our Governing Principles

Shakargan| conducts ity business in 3 responsible manmer with bonest anl integrity. We also expect the same from
st Bumsiness partacrs. We st the tome fr 3ll our sctkons and the sctioms of 3l our coaplovers by msiing
whot &5 nght W sho i tha 3l transecsons be open and ampan

iy fmarcol reporting. W endeneend oer aospormdsiioes @0 the shanrhoiders sd oo that Al EEsaTT

annd then ooty T el Posn

the accounts

ot ol ooy

all bws but are also Lirly and sccwratcly rel

rity: Shakangan| does nol wsc birilse as an instrumend (od any sincs of ol gaon !r|||'||-..u.|,'..'- e nal
suthosized 1o give or receive any gift or payment which may be comnstrued as swch, Employees ane also required o
vk enguglng in any personal activiey or financial fterests which would condlicn with their responsibility i the
CEmpEIY

Banarnd of [

crors: The Bownd bos 3 Sedocary nespomaality for the profer defocion snd commmod of

the actromses of the Compaen  The rospurndbaley sndisdes soch aress of strwadhdep s the e sten ol cnngnd
o the comparn 5 busanew ks, the e O LS el it snarmes ancd chCar ISR PoparTEng

v iharcholdon. The Baard scocpes @ prisnary responsibaliny for the owerall comtrod ancisitecmne of the Compam
Howver, it rovogniees that the intermal contiol syssom has 10 be cost effoctive and tha no oot effiecive spstem will
preclude all ermors or imegulasties. The sysiem s based upon writien procedsines, geolioss, guldclines, an ofganngrsm
that provides an appropriate division of responsihility, 2 programme of internal aedi, and manning of all key R
by qualified personmel and constant traning

sl of Cosdect: The Board o adopted 3 oodic of comdhat fior it membese. cxroutnes sod el spooihng the

business standards and cthical considerstions i comdeeting i busincsa, The oode inciudes

< Camrpesraie Grovernance

- Relavionship with cmployees, cstomen, supplicrs aid roguliton
J  Trading in Company s shanes

o Enwironmental responsibilitics

Responsibiility 1w Stakebobder: Our primary purpose s 0 nen our business effinerntly 2nd profitably so enbanor
shewvbobicr valoe bot we do @ with respomsdndey ol sabcholden Profitshsbin o cowmios b doabirg thes
epesibiley s the corporsie roouno st presanh deplosed rowands chicvement of thes s Homeer the
o docs ot opore 0 sobston wien @ crvimnment and sooedengd focks nosposmable g0 2l i stskchokdens






Our Governing Principles

he |

ril aims 1o ensure that shareho
I

s sharehaolders partic

lers are indormed of all major developments affecti

irmtion is communicated o the sharcholders in the annual e

1 andl the interim

ipation at the an

ral meetings to ensure 2 high level of

is currently and primarily

e in the Actu

rkeiing of white refined

il sugar by-pr v 5 also manufacturing and mg

ing other products such as ethanol
market |:-.:|-:|||.|::

article

hexard and varm and al=o continwes to diversify is product as

We currently aim 1o preserve our

rship position in the industries we compete in by peodu ing
the best quality products while LWesTing in human resaurce de

clopment technology, production and marker
expertse. We CEEVERO Y onir human resownces by INVESTINE in raining and CXpPerise o vl

g

ment of our people. We also

WErs, (L P m

suppliers, &s our important pariners and we share our research findlings from

te with them 1o increase the cuality and vield of their ero

nstiue continues 10 keep our farmers and Shakargani Mills Limited (SMLy ar the 0
Eanj

lech wEy. LI Operations manageme

Crsonngel ne ¢ value of technology §

processes and continue to keep pace with latest innovations and devel: ipments in the
Lo

. Shakargan also maximizes

ion and utilizgon roduots and by-pre

Iste utidgsang resources effectively and efficiencly

wl reduc duction. Our marketing team continues to sirengthen our position in markets that

2 overall cost of pr

W currenithy T [0, Wik |:||.".'|;.' Ii ||"

new products and profitable markers. All our personnel and our farmers operate

a5 3 team o mantain SMLUs leadership position in the industries it COmpeLes in
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Directors’ Report

Siztemiend o i afpotile zmd ltnancial reporilng

frpmerwurk

- The hmancial stasements. prcpared by the

mansgrmen of the coenparn . person ok @ stse

f afmr, the el of 2 aperstions. cosh fiows. and

chdinjges i oy

Froper hooks of aveodnts of the company have been

i dnitkineel

< Approprizte 1 puntng policies have heen
comistently applicd in preparation of Rancial
STy Crey o i LIRS U g ke e
B dnoueed @ ooer 1 4 o the Bauaciol stabreensy
NOCTREREERE, SSImUICy 200 Drsed o rrasonic sl
prudent jodgnon:

< Internationsl Aocounting ﬁuﬁhgu;_ s applicabde
th Pakistan, havi been follgwed in preparation of

L

™ m\nﬁﬂnﬁﬁﬂiuﬁnﬂh_

nl-um&m#_-d-ﬂ-ﬂ
2 m—-emﬁmmwtm
Lify 1o continuc 23 2 going tm

3 Jim-huhupu » rsterial depasture from the best
practioes of cpoesic povirnande, as detailed b the
isding regulatipns,

o Ilmldwmmmhﬂ\tﬂmm
oyt s during the cormend year sre sticd hh
Tl Forcutreg's Revew

- K cperaning ged fruneal das for the les soen

1ran s form s macicd on Papelll

J ,n:-m.n-dpm trecy and hmh'h
notes 10 the finpncial estements 1

< daest nurber of emploveesar thi mw
was 1403 (2003: 1 J‘J'ﬁ.

A Teilliow quh&mﬂw__

' ame Na, of meetings
ol [Mrector attemked
Mr b Karem 3
S Abman M. Sabeem L]
M. (rall M 5
M Khalid Bashir 5
M. Muhammd Anwar 5
Me Muhammai Amhad 3
Mr Mubamsad Asil 5
M Mhubuimeod Bl Shekd 1

The paticrn of sharcholding o per Soction 236 of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 b anached scparsicly on
page 104

hmm&MﬁMMm was carricd ot

_.wmmcm-rmn Hw <

minor children.

rr e

Since the baw sepon. 5o change in dicctoestep b ko
place.

'rh‘ Fﬂﬂ?ml afthe 7 clected directors will expire
A~

The soditary M A | Fergesn & (o Charered
A g, will ooy s arr chimibic for Fr-aposemen
HMH—H& parry o the noxt vear The Ausdi

"Wﬂl‘!ﬂﬂm board has recommended the re

.L[:i'nlw_lﬂﬁ;'ﬁﬁ F. Ferguson & Co., Chamered

‘ it syear ending Seprember 30, 3008
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Chief Executive’s Review

Drear Shakarganj Sharcholder

It gives me great pleasore in proesenting the annual pefformance review of vour company along with aedied Roanc:

statements for the vear ended Seprember 30, 2004

L]
With yjoant effors of the Team Shakangan and our Bemer commanity, vour company achieved revord |'l1'|||,i|_':|,[I!I||
siles and PFCTAR COrmdngs, Liur continuous l.I'I|‘|'I.l"I'\ G fOCUsing on misicks andl requireéments of the critical link in
o -i’ our supply chain, the fomers, s bearing frait for the company. Impetos o this significant performance was also
rowvidied by o comstant stress on ocost reduction and cficient resource wilizzdon in manufcroring of cospoodects
1 F
-
200 =
Net Profit
150 -4,
Fas bA
B | viges
= w0l e -’
= |
'.'.':: |
o = o |
o ! 50— = 7 =
£ |
| 1zes e 134
A o] —— | |
- -0 o0 G-k R0 03-0
Financial Year
Highlights
shakargan) has achicved many new landmarks in i operations and financial resules. Highlights of these achicvements
= are presented below

New Landmark of Sgar p||u.|:|||. pio o 360,813 metnc tons

Highest ever ethane] produection of 35408 milliun litres
Further improvment in last year's recond profitablity by teniy four percent

CooE

Increase in CAMNINES pei share from |l|,|p{|.'~. 3.3 912

Major Diversification (/

The major chevelesparent during the vear under review was the amalgamation of Crescent Ujala Limited into Shakargan
Mills Limired. As a result of this merger the share capital of the company has increased rom Bs. 292 360 million
Rs. 388430 millicn. Thie company has now cotbon spinning capacity of 28,000 spindles. This is our entry level
posithon in the textile business o pan of our diversification policy. Given the importance of textiles in national
coonomy nd synergy with the supply chain based on agriculieral produce, wextiles business will be one of our focal
_b— piints, After integration of this new line of business in our opertions we plan o strengthen this activity o increass
share holders value and diversify our rsk in the Rature. Oure vision is oo have 2 significant presence in esile business

in Pakistan \ . Hapi o g }}?




Chief Executive’s Review

Operating Performance Review Sugarcane Grushing

A brlel performance review of the business lines of Sugar and

co-profuces and rextile division s |>:1_\L-|1rl-.,] b leawe: 18
5.4

Sugar Husiness o 1058
0.B

sugar production for the year once again breached the previous ;

benchmark o reach 2 new high of 136,813 metric tos compared el

: AT 0,4
ter 127,000 metric tons last vear, Recovery was up from 7.5
& A : 632
pereent o B.A4T percent. This higher recovery and high rate of

chaily |'|.|'|!i||1'r: |r|_'|11|_-|_| us achieve thiese resules despite opEnIion GE00 et i}
for only 155 dovs compared eo 187 divs Tt vear and toal crushing
of Lols million wons compared to 1675 million tons.

o

Milon Meinc Tor

fats

Ethanol and Alternate Energy Business

Ethanol Division worked at an cxpanded capaciny and progiuced Sugar Production

35408 million litres of ethanol against 26,233 million Lirres st 180 000

vear showing an increase of 35 percent, Diversification intd ethanal sl
has reduced our dependence on suggar and has brought a balance

i our produet mix. This vear however sow n substantial increase p. 10050

in the price of molasses with the increase in the number of E

distilleries in the country and higher molasses demand overseas 3 e

We have moved towards value addition i this line of business AN :

Shakargan) now produces three distinet vasieties of ethanal for

indlustrial and alvernate encrgy wsage

Almirst S0 peocent of our ethan production is exported, increasing
the mathon's foreign exchange carmings. Luning the year foreign
sales were R 477 million and we expect this fgure o inerease in
Burture years. Shakargan was awarded FPCET export merit trophy

For the higghest expiirts of this product from Pakistan for the thied 50 Ethanol Production
fimy: 5
W
Building Materials Bulsness N s il
During the year the production of particle board was 5,025 cubb ?5. o 14,80
meters s compancd to 1,668 cubic meters last year, Improvement - S Siaia
in fecl efficiency made surplus bagasse available for conversion a2
Market for cur product also improved due to better economic B
mc anditions amd increased activity in the building sector, : .
01-02 03-0a
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Chief Executive’s Review

this project would be t

EFCTANE Earning Distribution

fechnology: to our frmers. These efforts are in svnenzy
with our research programme and compliment the
athanced research effons. Thiy pouvihe nzk with o winchomw
tor showease our successful rescarch cifors and makes

I essaer for the oeher Brmers wo emulate this teching

parkage

Corntribuition 1o | Loy

Herg a nesponsibbe member of the conporate community L0 P 13%
Shakargan] always contributes substintially fowards the

sal economy on account of taxes and orher

government levies, During this vear vour company’s

contribution w federal pronincial and local taxes way
the mne of Rs.561,52 million. We spent ks 155 million Emplayisis 28 rmunamtion

a5 cost of financing and share of workers compensas

witt Rs, [33.80 million. During the last ten vears, wo
B commpriiy his made o consolided contribsurion of Bs 2 50

'I"i billion in shape of Federal,

Prowincial aned local raxes

- Human Resource Developmeni

Ihe: highly qualificd core management weam an Shakansng
ineclues Phas, Chanered Accountants, MBAS, Gruduare
Engeneers wnd Mastersin Science & Apriculure. In adkdition
a0 extensive and structured continuows education
presgramme s followed in the company. Shakargan]

regularly semds ity masager
Iraiing programeme af Lahore | NIVETSIDY

il NECRITOR . i diagemient

SCICACES JI.'JI|III;|.' lea il ::'I]'.I|I.II1I.| i Business '\1_||'|J_.;. et
50 far 20 managers have qualified or are cusrently enrolled
in this custom designed  programme. One of our research

SCICnss 18 purswing a post doceonl preRgnimnee at Punjab
Umiversity. In addition oo this we sent several MAEETs

on execubve 1|':"l'l.'l'l‘|'lll'llll| programmes at [eading
institutions in Pakistan and INSEAD in France

In house training fcility and well equipped lirary with
latest books on all aspects of our business is maintained
for dw: benedit of the team members, The library subscriiss
to some P30 periodicals and the collection of books

excrvds 4750 These Bolives help our ream 1o ke thaeir
& knowledge hase updaned, SRR L 1 T il
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social Responsihili
W have a long récord a5 a good corporate cittzen and
are commitied to 2 policy of Rllowing exemplary social

standards im all our dez

er the banner

Uhr Social Action Pro nme delivers

retv af s

SEMVICES 10 0Ar ©X

cOmmunity g
of “Sukh Char Programnre” These services include
it Args sl protecison

Fugiion, Hedihcane, promg

of our culiural he

e proactive

In our education pro

AN W [N

110 hig eUwciaon th 181 CAEF comtrlatg

aiie L iaveesiny ol ll-|.|||.|:;-.'|::-.'||: SCETICES anil Mariomal
Textibe Unaversigy. Our school sdoption initistive provides

10 ten bocal schools that includes provision of

i II' 13} II'IIIL'IIﬂ W

nUrncen -.-.:|‘-|\5|'|-|-. s

FLRLIN L EERETA (1] WrARITUC e

atlelicional Bcilites where required. Another ten schools
wintild soon be added to this programme. Shakarganj
also provides support 1o ed n programme of The
rkis

sl teachers trainkng

Citgen's Foumn

T (] |"II

the educateon infgative 1 purg

institute is operating at Shak

INj Premises s 3 puidic

service, 5o far five hundred and ffy teachers haw

successfully completed training at this facility

The company has so far esablished staned fonv ¢

.II!II| INCracy Conires m irs vicinity, [Ty oaec a0

il-l'\-l
which ¢ight hundred

Shakargan] Healthcune inigacive didiver

s it the doge

Wi are aimu
patients diuring nex vedr. [hiagnostic Boilities, proy

treatment and free medicines are provided  the

PrOREmmE
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e Beien bkt i pwelve
Esan Markauz, serve
ramme in cach
tres are planned o

I ackelivican 1o delivenn ¢ sukh char programme at

dlocesteps, Kisan markae also serves as a Hest contact

point for our Birmers. Each fully staffed marka: 1

iy anc] factliting. supplics

im transfer of Brming techno

o Shakangin|

Shakar

nj provides suppon o the promising logal

talent o impensing thele artistn skills in a structired

IGEIARE I e Ak Che Sehood of At and Calsranly

exhibiting the works of these artists

A dlisplay it

il hier IABE 15 A0S0 FMIAnE

oy mhrkarmang af the Schoal

Safety. Health and Environment

wrd

- B " 't |
arganj is committed o maintain safe and

free e il arall s v laces. O

FErgen is in

hawe Bern imjsiry aned a vt recored, Best oraining and

crises mamprement skill= are needed 0 meet any

mnforeseen events af any focility. We have therefone

Initired o First Ak tradning programme 0 collaborason

E.Il eeAlmer, 50 Gir Towr I!R.III(ELI.'II .I.IH1 Rave

with |
members af Team Shakargan] have completed this

[Llgtitep el kil

shakargan) conducts all s operations by recofnang

responsthilities o the eovironment within which we

I.‘ul' ArL '|\..|:L Kl
1l i

sUE s separaie activities. We pim lor e waste

FFGNIIcHl !'.I.:IIJ:;I'ITII\.".:l Bha

kv odems | vl management, and the wo

we] conservation of energy resounces. Ry foous points
for prorcetion of our fraghlle enpvironment arc

i
SUMMMANSCO Ill {1

Wertang: o % af Kisin Manbas

SML has always
been a socially
responsible
corporate citizen
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Futury ©gtloonk

Shabangang has sbways had 3 positive foreand eoking
approach m it operations. W want o be resdy and
proparcd for oy cventualitses which muy are in 3
Competitive buviness covironment Dependence on
aprcaicutural produce for for our e matenals shwas
carrics its own economic risks due 10 seasonal vagaries
oof chimae, erop staes and demand and supply Imbalance,

Shakargani's core team of highly qualified managers,
praden ol polioes and ivesmenes, healeby halnce
sheet footimg. hagh starctseds of cofporsie precrmance,
dnvenificd bosiness lines and sucoosdal sapply choin
management are key fooss sress w0 provide noocsary
Bnanal depeh i dhwor sethacks, fvom anforeseen changes
w econormi: seenanio beyond our control. At the same
time this gives us  strong platform o beneflt from any
opportunities that arise for company’s benefit

Suggr crinp for sl year X005 & declinng and non cxperied
b0 et st vean quantem. However, despite of loss
SACrTEne ProckaTon o e moong bes efioes 5 s
0 ot crushing benchmark. nput prices arc stabic and
oot crop B expocted 10 meach new hights in Pakisan
This wotild contribute 10 further improving company’s
financial position st year The curvent vear production
highlights upto end December are given below:

Crunkung {Boms; T 561 114
Primfutan

Suggur (pons) 55001 |on
Exhanol (liters) 9.06M0,207  7,19%,202
Partical Board (o, memer) 1,195 -

Year 25 wshers in a new era of opporunitics and
chuliomges i busineses ginbally. The post quots sogime
i peuties and sovdoction of onfh world sade o poing
o v far rcaching effers on gobal commodier moden.
winch in tumn sould have mifuence on Prlostani markes.
and the way we do business. We at Shakanganj foel thar
the conmpany is ready and potsed to face the challenges

,’ Shahargan) Mills Limiind

If one does not
Know to which port
one is sailing, no

wind is favourable
Lucius Ammarus Semer
SBC-65AD

of these caciting times and take advantage of
opporTenaties tht wall anse

Chir capacity cxpansion plan for enhanctog crushing
of sugarcane and increasing the capaciey of ethanod
manubcturiag b in fall swing. Initially we were
hoping 10 catch 3 portion of the current crushing
seavn bot due 1o the delay i sgpply of some
imported machinery we 3re beopines 10 buve the traal
run of sugar manufaciuring cquipmen! boing
imporncd at the satellite facility. The ethanol
manufacturing there is however expecied 1o
commence during the year,

U e lissdanni

The Dircuzors arc afways 2 source of guidance amd
st o the manapement and we approoase ther
CoOmmitment (0 YOur Compam’s progros and
prosperiey. The Dircoiors would also bk i ogpeess
their appreciation for the dedicaied effors, ovaley
andd hard woek of the workers, staff and members of
the management team. Our sugarcane farmers ane
the: backbone of our industey and we thank them for
their contmucd support

""_'L_.,_._._...-.-n...l.—-_.:-

Absan M. Saleem
Chiel Exccutive

Lahore, Decembier 30, 2004






Statement of Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance

This sestemsent is being presented 1o comply with the Code of Corporate Governance a3 congzined in Regulaon
No 57 of the Linting Regubstions of the Karachi Stock Exchange and Chapter X of Listing Regabiwere ol Labewe
Sk Exchunge and (hapter Xl of Loting Regubinons of hismabad Ssock bxchangs for the parpose oof e ahdisheng
3 framewurk of good governance. wherchy 3 lseed compusy & sanoged n compligner with the e pramoos of
OONRICHE EOVCTTENGT

The compary has applicd the principles contiined in the Code in the follivwing manner

i The company encourages representation of independent non-cxroutive direaon, At presens all Diveonirs are
independent noo-crecutive direcomn

[ 2%

'l'h-du'zimhn:-muﬁ-ltdllllmm!huwwn:Mmmmdmrnmum_
inchudmg dhs Coemporn

3 All the resideni dircovons of the company ane registiered x» tiqavers and noc of them has defrubied in payTrent
of any boan to 4 banking company, a DI or an NBEC, None of them is 3 memiber of 2 sock exchinge

4 N eausal vacancy occurred during the year ended Sepember 30, 2004

5 The company has prepared 3 “Statcment of Ethics and Buwncss Pracocrs . whsck hus been signed by all the
directons End emphovess of the compam

6. The Board has developed 3 vision: mission stascment, overall corporsie strasegy, and significant polioes of the
company. A Complete rocond af padticulars of significant policies alognwith the dates on which they wer
approved or amended has been maingained

T Al vhe powers of the Boand have been duly exercised and decisions on material iransacsions, including
appoingmend and torms and conditons of complovment of the Cheef Evecutive Ofices (CEDN have been takens
by the Bognd

& The mcctings of the Boand were presaded over she by Chairman and. in his shsence by 3 diector eleceed by
the Buard for this purpase and the Boand met once i every guaner during the vear ended Sepiember 36
2INM. Writren notices of the Board Meetings, alomgwith agenda and wirking papers, were circulaied ar lezst
sevieny days hefore the meetings. The Minutes of the mectings were appropriately reconded and cireulined

9 The members of Board have ssended onientation course 10 pprise them of their duties and respossibilisies

10 The board has sppeoved apposnimen: of CHOHCompany Sooremany and the beat of breermai Audie, snchdog
thoir remuncration and torms 3nd conditions af cmplovyment, 15 recommended by CEO

1. The Director's Repont for the year ended September 30, 2004 bas been prepared in compliance with the
- requirements of the Code and it fully describes the salient maners required o be diselosed,

,.,# Bhakargawm) Wills Limivad
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Statement of Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance

L The Anancial statemems of

s company were duly endorsed by the CEO and CFO before approval by the

Bomared
13 The Phrectors, CEO and execoutives do not hold any interest i the shares of the company, other than that
ehischised i the pattern of shareholding

I Fhe company has comphied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code
15 e Baoard has formied an auwdit commiitee, 1§ comprises of three memhbers, all of wham are AR
il ors including she Chaironn of the Comminee. The Audit Charter of the Company rescpuines that al leiss

mwrr mermbers of the Audin Committee must be financiadly Berae

16 e mwetings of the awdit committee wene held an leassonce every quarner priar to approval of intesims and

final results of the company and as required by the Code. The terms of reference of the comminee have been

toemicd and advised to the committee for compliinee
17 The Board has serip an effective inernal wudit function by appolating a full-tme Head of Intemal Audit, The

oy woe dlay operations of this function-have been outsourced o M, Rixe Ahmad & Company 'l'-'humumhdﬂtt[

sultably qualificd and vxperenced i |
I8, The staturory auditors of the company have confiemed that they have been given a <1 isfactory

the quality contml meview progr

e of the Instoute of Chareered Accisuniants af I-';|F..'|j|:],|'|I ]M
o the partoers of the fiem, their spowuses and mimor children do sor bold shans of the I
Firm asd all its pareners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountanis (TEAL)
code of ethics as a lapted by the Instone of Chartered Avcountants of Pakistan

The stenstory gsditoss ar the persans msociabed with them have not been -|p|1|_|||'|[1.11 R0

except in aecordance with the listing segulations and the sudioes have confirmed that they,
TESL griddelines i this regard

A We confirm that all other material principles contained in the Codé” Have

tiv oncler of

Ahsan M. Saleem

Chiel Exequtive

Devember S0 2004




Review Report to the Members on Statement of Compliance

With Code of Corporate Governance

Wie lave reviewed the satement of compliance with the best practices contained in the code of corporate governince
prepared by the Board of Directons of SHAKARGAN] MILLS 1 IMITED 10 comply with the Listing Regulaion No. 537
of Karachi Stock Exchange, Chapter X1l of Lahore Stock Exchange and Chapter XI of Islamabad Stock Exchange
where the company is lsted

e responsibility for compliance with the code of conporate governance is that of the Board of Directors of the
company. Our responsihility is o review, to the caent where such compliance can be objectively verified. whether
the ssatement of compliance reflects the staus of the company's compliance with the provisions of the code ol
COPPOATE ROvernance and report if it does nod. A review is limited primurily to ingquirics of the company persannel
andl review of various documents prepared by the company to comply with the code

As pant of our audit of financial statements, we are requinsd i obtain an undersanding of the accounting and infemal
contrel systems sufficient to plan the awdit and develop an effoctive audit approach. We have not cafded out any
special review of the internal control system to enable us 1o express an opinion as o whether the Board's stitement
on internal control covers all contrals and the effectiveness of such internal controls.

=
Based on our review, nothing has come to our atention which causes us o believe that the stalement of compliance Ny
doses mt approprately reflect the company’s compliznce, in all material respects, with the best prictices contained -‘L

L
in the code of corporate governance as applicable to the company for the year ended september 30, 2004,

Lahore: December 30, 2004 A. E Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Acconntants
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Auditors’ Report to the Members

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of SHAKARGANJ MILLE LIMITED as at September 30, 2004
and the refated profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statlemeant of changes in equity together with
the notes forming par thereol, for the vear then ended and we state that we have obtained all the infofmalion
and explanaticns which, to the best of cur knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal contral
and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standands
and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Our responsibility is 1o express an opinicn on
these statements based on our audil.

We conducted aur audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan, These standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the above said
slatements are free of any material misstatemeant. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statemeants. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting policies and significant estimales made by managemant, as well as, evalualing the ovarall
presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion and, afler due verificalion, wa report thal:

a)  inouropinicn, proper books of accounts have been kept by the company as required by the Companies
Chrdinance, 1984;

B} inour opinion:

i} the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn
up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreemant with the books of
accounts and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied, except for
the changes as stated in nole 2.3 with which we concur;

i} the expanditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the company’s business; and

i} the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in
accordance with the objects of the company;

¢} in our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, the
balance sheel, profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together
with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so
required and respectively give a irue and fair view of the siate of the company's affairs as al Seplember
30, 2004 and of the profit, its cash flows and changes in equity for the yvear then ended; and

d}  incur opinion, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakal and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XMl of 1980),
was deducted by the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of

that Ordinance.
QJWLGL o L
Lahore A. F. Ferguson & Co.
December 30, 2004 Charlered Accountanis
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Equity and Liabilities
Share Capital and Reserves

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Reserves
Unappropriated profit

Surplus on Revaluation of Operating
Fixed Assets

Mon Currant Liabilities

Long lerm finances - secured

Long term advances

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Employeas’ retirament benefits

Deferred income

Defarred taxation

Current Liabilities
Current portion of long term liabilities
Short term borfawings - secured

Creditors, acerued and other liabilities
Dividends

Contingencies and Commitments

NOTE

SWm~man

1
12
13
14

15

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these accounts,

Chief Executive —

Shakarganj Mills Limited

Ay

Balance Sheet

(Rupees in Thousand)

2004 2003
388,430 544,360
1,546,719 390,426
68,496 56,377
2,003,645 991,163
3,212 3,243
1,502,566 329,685
49,719 :
167,922 149,044
1,566 -
7,088 .
50,484 15,049
1,780,245 494,678
356,160 362,746
1,491,007 1,028,527
551,243 314,787
1,659 1,347
2,400,159 1,707,407
6,187,261 3,196,491




As at September 30, 2004

Asszets
Tangible Fixed Assets

Operating assels
Assels subject to finance lease
Capital work in progress

Other Long Term Assets

Invesiments - associated underakings
Long lerm deposits

Current Assats

Slores, spares and loose tools

Siock-in-frade

Trada debts

Loans, advances, prepayments and other receivables
Shart term investments

Cash and bank balances

NOTE

16
17
18

21
22
23

26

(Rupees in Thousand)
2004 2003

1,287,761 1,140,175
247,240 191,373
1,368,074 158,200
2,903,075 1,489,838
77,000 125,583
36,679 21,717
113,778 147,300
47,867 54,524
464,590 706 446
116,795 66,087
248,590 172,588
2,264,235 522902
28,281 36416
3,170,408 1,559,353

6,187,261 3,196,491

Chairman
Annual Repont 2004 -"2‘
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Profit and Loss Account [
For the year ended September 30, 2004

Lo
NOTE (Rupees in Thousand)
2004 2003
Sales 27 3498163 2,612 809
Cost of Sales 28 3,117,624 2,282 487
Gross Profit 380,539 330,512
Administrative expenses 29 120,590 86,403
Digtribution and selling costs 30 48,827 33,210
Other operating expenses 3 48,741 18,324
218,158 137,937
162,381 192,575
Other Operating Income 32 171,198 87, 169
Profit from operations 333,579 278,744
Share of income from associates-net of tax 16,019 30,518
349,598 310,263
Finance Costs 33 135,029 150,977
Profit Before Taxation 214,569 159,286
Taxaticn 34 54,552 28,708
Profit After Taxation 160,017 129,578
Eamnings per Share - Basic and Diluted 35 4.12 334

The annexed notes 1 1o 44 form an integral part of these accounts,

e o L
Chief Executive ™

Shakarganj Mills Limited
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Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended September 30, 2004

Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Cash used in operations

Financial charges paid

Taxes paid

Employees' retirement benefits paid

HNat Cash (Outflow) From Operating Activilies
Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Fixed capital expenditure

Investment made in associales

Proceeds from sale of investment in associates
Het {increase) in long-term deposils

Dividand received

Proceeds from sale of fixed assels

Het Cash Used in Investing Activities
Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Procaads from long term finances

Repayment of long term finances

Long term advances

Mot increase in short term borrowings-secured
Faymenl of finance lease labilities

Dividend paid

Net Cash Inflow From Financing Activities

Wet {Decrease)/increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year

ar

26

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these accounts.

Chief Executive ~

(Rupees in Thousand)

2004 2003

(20,437) (151,084)
{118,871) (161,283)
(35,537) {25,168)

(5,382) :
(178,227) (337,535)
{1,497 855) {370,891)

(15,455) .
63,069 25,323
(14,962) (9,578)
27,811 12,281
34,124 91,893
{1,403,268) (250,972)
1,317,743 190,510
(180,548) (83,745)

50,673 -
462,570 B48,026
{42,461) (99.462)
(43,617) (43,737)
1,573,360 611,592
(8,135) 23.085
36,416 13,321
36,416

28,281

At

Chairman
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Motes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

Legal Status and Mature of Business

The company is incorporaled in Pakislan and s lisled on Karachl, Lahore and |stamabad Stock
Exchanges. L is principally engaged in manufacture, purchase and sala of sugar, distillate, particle
board and yam.

The Lahore High Gourt sanciioned the Scheme of Arrangement for Amalgamation of Crescent Ujala
Limited with the company with effect from Octaber 1, 2003, According to the scheme of arrangement,
members of Crescent Ugala Limited are to recefve 38 ordinary shares of Rs 10 each of Shakargan]
Mills Limited for each 100 shares hetd in Crescent Ujala Limlted, These accounts have been prepared
on uniting of interest basis in accordance wilh the International Accounting Standard 22 "Business
Combinations®,

Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial stalemenis have been prepared under the historical cost convention axcapl for
recognilion of certain staff retirement benefils al present value as stated in nole 2.5, revaluation
of certain fixed assets referred 1o in note 2.6 and revaluation of carlain financial instruments at
fair value a3 referred lo in nota 2.8, -

2.2 Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Ordinance. 1984,
Approved accounting standards comprise of such Infemational Accounting Standards as notified
under ihe provisions of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Wheraver, the requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 or directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan differ with the requirements of these standards, the requirements of Companies
Ordinance, 1984 or the requirements of the said directives take precedonce.

2.3 Change in Accounting Policies

231 During the year, the SECP substifuled the Fourth Schadule 1o the Ordinance which is
alfective from fnancial year ending on or afler July 5, 2004. This has resulted in the
change in accounting policies pertaining to capitalization of exchange diferences (note
2.6} and recognition of dividends proposed subsequent to the year end (note 14),
Comparative figures have been restated to reflect the effect of changes in accounting
paliches.

232 During the current year, the company in pursuance of Companies' {Amendment)
Ordinance, 2002 and SRO 45(1) dated January 13, 2003 issuad by SECP. has changed
its accounting palicy with respect to surplus on revaluation of fixed assets. Previously
the gross surplus credited to this account was shown at its original amount arising at
the dale of revaluation and no adjusimenis were made excepl 1o the extent that It was
aclually realised on disposal of the assels thal were revalued or deficit arising from
ravaliation of other fixed assels of the company.

Annual !":t'p-\.ll.'l 0N @
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Motes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

2.4

The company has now recognised the deferred tax effect relating to the surplus on
revaluation in accordance with Intermnational Accounting Standand (IAS) 12 {ravised 2000)
- Income Taxes. Moreover, each year the difference between depreciation based on
revalued camying amount of the assat (the depreciation charged in the profit and lass
account) and depreciation based on the assats' original cost is transfarred from the
revalualion surplus to unappropriated profit, net of defarred 1ax. The incremental
depreciation net of deferred Lax refating to prior years has been transfemad from thie
ravaluation surplus io unappropriated profit under benchmark treatment of 1AS 8 (revised
1993) - Net Profit or loss for the perisd, Fundamental errars and Changesin accounting
policies, as refarred to in note 4. Accordingly, comparalive figures as reported in the
balance sheet, profit and loss account ang statement of changes in equily are restated
1o conform with Ihe changed accounting policy. Had there been no change in the
accounting policy:

- Surplus on revaluation of fixed aszets would have been higher by Rs 7.354 million
(2003: Rg 7.332 milkiom).

- Deferred tax liability would have been lower by Rs 0L206 million (2003: Rs 0,223 rmillicn).
- Unappropriated profit would have been Iewer by Rs 7.113 million (2003: Rs 7.082 miillign).
Taxation

Current

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance
with the prevailing law for taxation of income, The charge for current lax is calculated using
prevailing tax rales or lax rales expected to apply to the profit for the year if enacled. The charge
for current tax also incledes adjustiments, where considered necessary, 1o provision for tax
made in pravious years arising from assessmenis framed during the year for such YEars,

Deforrad

Deferred tax is accounted for usging the balance sheet liability method in respect of all lermparany
differences arising from differences between Ihe carrying ameunt of assels and liabilities in the
financial stalements and the cormesponding tax bases used in the compuiation of the laxabhe
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assels ano recognised to (he extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be

available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits
can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated al the rates ihat are expected 1o apply to the period when the differences
reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted ar substantively enacted by the balance
sheel date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except in the case of
iterns crediled or charged to equity in which case it is indudad in equity.

Shakarganj Mills Limited
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2.5 Employees' Retirement Benefits

2.5.1

(a)

(b)

Defined Benefit Plan

Tha main feature of the schemes operated by the company for its employees of sugar
and allied divisions are as follows:

Gratuity Fund

The company operates an approved funded defined benefit gratuity scheme for all
permanent employees, who are in the management cadre of the company subject 1o a
minimurn qualifying period of service according to the terms of employment. Monthiy
contributions are made to this fund on the basis of actuarial recommendation 3 8.33%
per annum of basic salary. Actuarial valuation for the scheme was caried oul as at
September 30, 2004.

Actual return on plan assets during the year was Rs.2 468 million. The actual return on
plan assels represents the difference between the fair value of plan assets at the
beginning of the year and as al the end of the year afler adjusimenis for contributions
made by the company as reduced by benefits paid during the year,

The fulure contribufion rate of the plan include allowances for deficit and SUrplus.
Projected unit credit method using the following significant assumptions, is used for
valuation of this schema:

Discount rate B
Expected increase in eligible pay Fik
Expected rate of return on plan assets 10%

The company's policy with regard to actuarial gains/losses is to follow minimum
recommended approach under 1AS 19 (Revised 2000).

Pension Fund

The company operales an approved funded defined benafit pension scheme for all
permanent employess, who are in management cadre of the company. Monthly
confributions are made to this fund on the basis of acluarial recommendation @ 20%
per annum of basic salary. Actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out as at
September 30, 2004.

Actual return on plan assels during the year was Rs. 10,962 million. The actual return
on plan assets represents the difference between the fair value of assets at the beginning
of the year and as at the end of the year after adjustments for contributions made by the
company as reduced by benefits paid during the year.

Annual Repon 2004

%

61




2|

IEIEI

Notes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

252

The fulure contribution rate of the plan include allowances for deficil and surplus.
Projecied unit eredit method using the fellowing significant assumplions, is used for
valuation of this scheme:

Discount rate 8%
Expected increase in eligible pay 7%
Expecied rate of return an plan assets 10%

The company's pelicy wilh regard o actuarial gainsiosses is lo follow minimum
recommended approach under [AS 19 (Revised 2000).

Defined Contribution Plans

There is an approved conbributory provident fund for all permanent employeas. Equal

manthly conlributions are made by the company and employess to the fund in accordance
wilh the fund rules,

Intergst @@ 7-9% per annum is payable 1o the fund on the balances uliizad by the
company which is charged to profit.

Retirement benefits are payable 1o staff on compietion of prescribed qualifying period
of service under these schemas,

2.6  Fixed Capital Expenditure and Depreclation

2.6.1

Operating Fixed Assals - Tangible

Freehaold land, buildings and plant and machinery as at September 30, 1979 have baen
revalued by an independent valuer as of that date and are shown al net revalued figures
less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss. Addiions subsequent
to that date are stated al cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified

impairment loss. All othar operating fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any identified impairment loss,

Casts in relation to certain operating fixed assets comprises of histarical cosd, intarest
and cost attributable to bring the asset 1o waorking condition.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of fixed as3es are credited fo
surpius on revaluation of fixed assets. Decreases that offset pravious increases of the
Same assels are charged against this surplus, all other decraases are charged to income.
Each year the difference between depreciation based on revalued carmying amount of
the asset (the depreciation charged 12 the income) and deprecialion based an the assats’
original cost is transferred from surplus 6n revaluation of fixed assels lo unappropriated
profit. All iransfers to/from surplus on revaluation of fiwed assels are net of applicable
deferred income taxes,

Depreciation on all operaling fixed assets js charged to profit on the reducing balance
method 5o as to write off the cost of an asset over its estimated useful life at the annual
rates given in nate 16.1.

Shakargan) Mills Limited
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Full year's depreciation is charged on additions during the year while no depreciation is
charged on assels sold or delated during the yvear. Impairment loss or its reversal, if
any, i also charged lo income. Whare an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation
charge I3 adjusted in the fulure periods to allocate the asset's revised carmying amount
over its estimated useful life.

Major repairs and improvements are capitalised. Minor repairs and renewats are charged
to income. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the
difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel is recognised
A5 an iNComea or eXpense.

The company has changed its acoounting policy relaling o exchange differences on
foreign currency loans. Previously exchange differences on foreign currency loans were
included in the cost of tangible fixed assets. Effective from current year, the company
accouwnts for exchange differences as an expensefincome for the year.

The change in accounting policy has bean applied prospectively in accordance with the
IAS-8 'Met Profit or Logss for the period, Fundamental Errors and Changes in accounting
policies’, as it is impracticable to reascnably determing the amount of adjustment relating
lo opaning balance of un-appropriated profit. The comparative information has nol been
restaled as Il is impracticable to do so. Tha change in accounting policy has no effect
on the amounts repoarted for in the Profit and Loss Account for the current year.

2.6.2 Capital Werk-in-Progress
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss.
Leases
The company 3 the lassee:
2.7.1  Finance Leases

Leases where the company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Al inceplion, finance leases are capitalised at the lower of
present value of minimum lease payments under the lease agreements and the fair
value of the assels.

The related rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in liabilities against
assels subject 1o finance lease as referred 1o in note 7. The liabilities are classified as
current and long lerm depending upen the timing of the paymaent.

Each leasa payment is alfocated batween the liability and finance charge 50 as to achieve
a constant rate on the balance outstanding. The interest element of the rental is charged
o profit over the lease term.

Assels acquired under a finance lease are depreciated over the useful life of the asset
on reducing balance mathod at the rates given in note 17. Depreciation of leased assets
i charged to profit and loss account.
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Depreciation on additions to leased assels Is charged from (he yaar in which an asset is
acquired while no depreciation is charged on transfers 1o fixed assets during the year.

27.2 Operating Leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases, Faymenis made under operating leases
(net of any incentives recaived from the lessor) are charged to profit on a straight-line
basis over the lease term,

Investments

Investments in Equity Instruments of Associated Undertakings

Investments in equity instruments of associated undenakings where the company has significant
influence are stated using the equity mathod.

Other Investments

The other investments made by the company are classified for the purpose of measuremant
into the following calegories.

Held to Maturity

Investments with fixed maturity that the management has the intent and ability to hold to matwrity
are classified as hold to maturity and are inltially measured at cost and at subsequent reporting
dales measured at amortised cost using the effective yigld method.

Awvailable for Sale

Invastments classified as available for sale are initially measured at cosl, being the fair value of
considaration given. At subsequent raparting dates, these invesiments are remeasured at fair
value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from the changes in the fair value are included in fair
value resende in the period in which they arize,

The fair value of publicly traded securilies is based on market prices quoded on Karachi Stock
Exchange al the balance sheet date. The fair value of un-quoted securilies is based on the
break-up value of the most recent audited financial sialements.

Investments intended 1o be held for less than twelve months from the balance sheet date or to
be scid fo ralse aperating capital, are included in current assats, all olher investments are
dlassified as long lerm. Management determines the appropriate classification of its invesimenis
at the time of the purchase and re-evaluates such designation on a reqular basis,

Held for Trading

Investments that are acquired principally for the purpose of generaling a profit from short-term
fluctuations in price are classified as Irading investments. These are initially measured at cost

Shakarganj Mills Limited
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and at subsequent reparting dates, these investments are remeasured at fair value, Realised
and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are imcluded in nat profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

All purchases and sales of investiments are recognised on the trade date which i= the date that the
company commils 1o purchase or sell the investment. Cost of purchase includes fransaclion cost.

Al each balance sheet date, the company reviews the carmying amounts of the investments to
assess whelher there is any indication that such investments have suflered an impairment koss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is astimated in order to determing the
extent of the impairment loss, i any. Impairment losses are recognised as expense. Where an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the camying amount of the investment is Increased o
the revised recoverable amount but limited to the extent of initial cost of the investment. A
reversal of the impairment loss is recognised in income.

Stores, Spares and Loose Tools

Usable stores and spares are valued principally al mowving avarage cost, while itams considered
absolete are carried at nil value. llems in ransit are valued at cost comprising inveice value plus
ather charges paid theraon.

Stock-in-Trade

Stock of raw materials, except for stock of molasses and those in transil, work-in-process and
finished goods are valued principally at the lower of weighted average cost and nel realisable
value, Cost of wark-in-pracass and finished geods comprises cost of direct materials, labour
and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Slock of waste materials and molasses is valued at
nel realisable value.

Cost of work-in-process and finished goods comprises cost of direct materials, labour and
appropriate manufacturing overheads.

Materials in ransit are stated at cost comprising inveice values plus other charges paid thereon.

Mal realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of busingss less
cosls necessary lo ba incurred in order to make a sale.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the company becomas a party to
the contraciual provisions of the instrument. The particular measurement methods adopled are
dizelosed In the individual policy statements associated with each item.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financlal assels and financial liabililies are sel off and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if the company has the legal right to set off the transaction and also intends gither o setllle
on a nel basis or to realize the asset and seftle the Rability simultaneously.
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Trade Dabts

Trade debts are carried al original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtiul receivable
balances based on review of oulstanding amounts at the year end, Bad debts are written off
when identified.

Creditors, Accrued and Other Liabilities

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are measured at cost which is the fair value of
the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services.

Borrowings

Loans and borrowings are recorded al the proceeds received. In subsequent periods, bomowings
are stated al amorlised cost using the effective yield method. Financial charges are accounted
for on an accrual basis and are included in creditors, accrued and other liabilities to the extent of
the amaunt remaining unpaid.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheat at cost. For the purpose of cash
flow statement cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits, other short
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 1o known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Foreign Currencies

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign cumencies are franskated into Rupees at exchange
rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are transiated into
Rupees at the spot rate. All non-monetary items are translated into Rupees at exchange rales
prevailing on the date of transaction or on the date when fair values are cotermined. All exchange
differences ara taken to the profit and boss account.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event,
whichi it is probable will result in an outfiow of economic benedits and a refiable estimate can ba
made of the amount of the obligation.

Borrowing Costs
Mark-up, interest and other charges on long-term bormowings are capitalized upto the date of

commissioning of the respective fixed asset, acquired out of the proceeds of such long-term
borrowings. All other mark-up, interest and other charges are charged to profit.

Shakarganj Mills Limited
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2.21

222

Darivative Financial Instruments

These are initially recorded at cost and are remeausered at fair value al subsequent reporting
dales.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sales s recognized on dispatch of goods o customers.

Dividend income on equity investments except associales is recognized when the right of receipt
i% astablished. Dividend from associated undentakings is recognized as a reduction in cost of

invesiments.

Gainfloss on investments in asseciated undertakings is accounted for to recognize the post
acquisition changes in the share of net assets of the invastes.

Return on deposits is accrued on a time proporkon basis by refefence 1o the principal oulslanding
and the applicable rate of return.

Business Segments
The company is divided into four business segments:

- Sugar division - manufacture of sugar;

- Distillery division - manufaclure of athanal:

- Parlicle board division - manufacture of particle boards; and
- Textila division - manufaciure of yam

All these business segments are located in the same geographical area.
2221 Segment Assats and Liabilities

The assets of a segment include all operaling assets used by a segment and consists
principally of oparaling cash, receivables, inventories and property, plant and equipment,
net off allowances and provisions.

Segment labilities include all operating llabilities consisting principally of long term loans
and liabilities against assels subject to finance lease specifically acquired for the
construction of segment assels, deferred Habilities, short lerm borrowings, other payables
and accrued liabilities.

The carrying amount of identiffable assets and liabilities are directly attributed to

respective segments. The carrying amount of jointly used assets and liabilities of sugar
and allied segments is classified as unallocated assets and liabilites.

Anmenl Repart 2004
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1137 Alocation of Segment Expenses
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= »

{Rupees in Thousand)

2004 2003
OCpening balanca 3,243 10,566
Deferred tax thareon - 2,708
Revaluation net of defarred tax 3,243 7.858
L]
Surplus transferred to unappropriated profit on account
of incremental depreciation- net of tax for:
‘% - Prior years - 4,581
- Current year B 34
? | 4,615
3,212 3,243
4.1 Incremental depreciation represents the difference belween the aclual depreciation on buildings
and plant and machinery and the equivalent deprectation based on the historical cost of buildings
and plant and machineny.
(Rupees in Thousand)
2004 2003
!.{ 5. Long Term Finances - Secured
) These are composed of:
j-=
Tarm finance cerlificates - No 1 - note 5.1 £3,300 166,600
Term financa cerlificates - No 2 - nole 5.2 159,904 180,920
243,204 366,520
Long term loans = note 5.3 1,554,224 283,713
1,787,428 660,233
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities
- Term finance cerificates 163,252 123,316
‘- - Long-term loans 131,610 207,232
_—
294 862 330,548
1,502,566 329,685
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5.1

5.2

Shakarganj Mills Limited

Term Finance Certificate - Mo, 1

The TFCs have been issued as fully paid scrips of Rs 5,000, Rs 25,000, Rs 50,000, Rs 100,000
and Rs 1,000,000 denomination or multiple thereof. These are listed on Lahore Stock echangs,

Rate of Return

The return on TFCs is payable semi-annually and is calculated at the State Bank of Pakistan
discount rate + 2% per annum subject to a floor of 15% per annum and a ceiling of 18.75% per
annum,

Terms of Repayment

These are redeemable in eight semi-annual installments.

Security

These are secured against first pari passu charge on all present and fulure fixed assets of the
company and pledge of investments referrad to in note 25.1.1 having face value of Bs 32 .44
million (2003: 40,00 milion)

Term Finance Certificate - No. 2

The TFCs have been issued as fully paid scrips of Rs 5,000, Rs 25,000, Rs 50,000, Rs 100,000
and Rs 1,000,000 denomination or multiple thereof. Thesa are listed on Lahore Stock exchange.

Rate of Return

The retun on TFCs Is payable semi-annually and is calculated at the Stale Bank of Pakistan
discount rate + 2% per annum subject to a floor of 12.25% per annum and a cailing of 15.75%
per annum,

Terms of Repayment

These are redeemable in eight semi-annual installments.

Security:

These are secured against first pari passu charge on all present and future fixed assets of the
company.
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Notes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

Security

Loan 1

This has been repaid during the yaar.

Loan 2

These finances are secured by first legal mortgage on company's present and future immoveable
preperty wharever situated and hypothecation charge on all the present and future plant and
machinery of the comparny.

Loan3to 8

These are secured against first charge on fixed assets of the company ranking pari passu with
other craditors.

Lean 9

Itis secured against equilable mortgage on immaovable properly financed through the loan.
Loan Ne. 10

The loan is secured by way of hypolhecation charge over plant and machinery of the texdile division,
Loan No. 11

The loan is secured by first charge by way of hypothecation over all the present and future plant
and machinery of texlile division.

Loan No. 12

The loan is secured by first charge by way of hypothecation over all moveable assets of the
company and equitable morgage charge over plant and machingry of the expansion project,

{Rupees in Thousand)

2004 2003
6.  Long Term Advances
Total advance from leasing companies 60,484 -
Less: Repaymant to date 811 -
58,673 ot
Less: Currant portion shown under current liabilities 9,954 .
49,718 -

shakarganj Mills Limited




B, .

Notes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

Thesa represent advances from financial institutions and carry mark-up ranging from Re, 013078 per
1,000 per dierm o Ra. 0.28104 per 1,000 per diem to finance the assets which are included in capital |
work in progress. The balance would be transferred 1o liabilities against assels subject to finance
lease on commissioning of respeciive assets.

({Rupeses in Thousand)

2004 2003

7.  Liabllities Againsi Assets Subject To Finance Lease

Present value of minimum lease payments 219,268 181,242 |
Leas: Current portlon shown under current labilities 51,344 32.198
167,922 148,044

The minimum lease payments have bean discounted at an nplict inlerest rate ranging from 4 358%
10 17% o amive al thesr present vaiue. Rentals are paid i monthiy/Quanedyisemi-annual nstaliments
and in case of defaull in any payment, an sddiional charge at tha rale of 1.67% to 3% shall be paid.
The lesses has the option 1o purchase the assets after expiry of the lease term.

Taxes, rapairs and insurance costs are to be bome by the company. In case of early termination of
lease, the lessee shall pay entine amount of rentals for unexpired parod of lease agreement,

Thie amount of future paymants of the lease and the period in which these payments will become due |

are as folliows:
Minmimum Future Presant valus of
Lease finance iease lability
Payments 2004 2003
{Rupees in Thousand)
Mol later than one yaar 69,926 18,582 51,344 32,198

Later than one year and not tader than

five years

2005 - - - 47,165
2008 70,330 13132 57,198 7170
2007 58,381 9,208 49173 41,232
2008 51,727 2.6, 49,008 10,620
2009 13,247 732 12,615 .

183,685 25,763 167822 136,188
Later than frve years - - - 12,856

26351 44348 219,268 181,242
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—
(Rupees in Thousand)
2004 2003
8. Employees' Retirement Benefits
The amaunts recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:
Paension fund = note 8.1 3,278 -
Gratuity fund - nole 8.2 (1,712) -
1,566 = _r
2
8.1 Pension Fund
j
Present value of defined benefit obligations 92,989 -
Fair value of plan assels (79,799) -
Hon vested (past service) cost o be
recognized in later periods (11,461)
Unrecegnized acluarial gains 1,548
Liability as at Seplember 30 3,278 -
Met liabdlityi{assat) as at October 01 - - X
Charge to profit and loss account 6,908 : s
Confribution by the company (3,630) - ol
Liability as at September 30 3.278 =
81.1 Fair value of plan assets include Term Finance Cerificates of the company whose fair
value as al Seplember 30, 2004 s Rs. 3.314 million (2003: Rs Nil ).
8.1.2 The company has recognized the liabfiity for pension fund in the current year in
accordance with the actuarial valuation as at Seplember 30, 2004. In the previous year
liability/asset wag nol recognized by the company as it was considered immaterial.
&
rjg,. Shakarganj Mills Limited
74 X



Notes to the Accounts for the Year

{Rupees in Thousand)

2003

) Ended September 30, 2004
& 5
2004
8.2 Gratuity Fund
Present value of defined benefit obligations 21,176
Fair value of plan assels (22,607)
Unrecognized actuanial (losses) (281)
(Asset) as at Seplomber 30 ¥ (1,712)
- i Met liabilityf{asset) as at October 01 -
Charge to profit and loss account 40
Confribution by the company (1,752)
L (Asset) as al September 30 (1,712)

8.2.1  Fairvalue of plan assels include Term Finance Cerlificates of the company which have
a fair value as at Septembar 30, 2004 of Rs. 1.028 million (2003 Rs Ml }.

8.22 The company has recognized the llability for gratuity fund in the current year in

accordance with the actuarial valuation as at Seplember 30, 2004,

In the previous year

liabilityfasset was not recognized by the company as it was considerad immaterial.

5 9. Deferred Income
it
This represents the unamortised balance of excess of sale proceeds over carnying amount of plant
T and machinery on sale and lease back transaction with financial institutions. |
The defarred income is being amortised each year over the respective period of the lease term. The
amount credited to the profit and loss account during the year was Rs 3,037 million (2003: Rs Nil).
(Rupees in Thousand) |
2004 2003 |
10. Deferred Taxation-net
' The liability for deferred taxation comprises lemporary differences relating to:

& Accelerated tax depreciation 210,518 132,004
,.n—j Surplus on revaluation of fixed assats 206 223 |
r Unused tax losses (141,025) (116,278) [

Minimum tax available for carry forward {19,215) -
50,484 15,949
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Notes to the Accounts for the Year
N Ended September 30, 2004

{Rupees in Thousand)

2003

1. Current Partion of Long Term Liabilitios

8, Long term finances -secured =note § 294,862 330,548
Long term advances = mote & 9,954 .
Liabilities against assels subject to finance lease =note 7 51,344 32,108

356,160 362,746

12.  Short Term Borrowings - Secured

Shart term running finances = note 12.1 938,011 629,266
Export refinance - note 12,2 189,000 71,500
Short term finances = nofa 12.3 364,086 327,761

1,491,097 1,028,527

12.1 Shert Term Running Finances

Running finances available from a conserium of commercial banks under mark up arrangemeants
ameount to Rs. 2,321 million (2003: Rs 1,064 million) The rate of mark up range from Re. 0,109
to Re. 0.2466 per Rs. 1,000 per diem on the Gulstanding balance or part thereof. The aggregate
running finances are secured against pledge of stoek in trade and marketable securities and
hypothecation of current assels of the company.

12.2 Export Reflnance

The company has obtained expert finance facilitiss aggragating to Rs 280 million (2003: Rs 100
million). The rates of mark up range from Re 0.08504 to 0.10859 per Re 1.000 per diem or part
therecf. The aggregate export and import finances are secured against lien on export contracts
and ranking charge on current assets of the company.

12,3 Short Term Finances

Short term finances obtained from a consortium of commercial banks under mark up
amangements carry mark-up ranging from Re. 0.1369 to Re. 0.2465 per Rs. 1,000 per diem on
the balance culstanding. These are secured against registered charge on current assels of the
| COMparny.

Of the aggregate facility of Rs 225 million (2003: Rs. 30 million) for opening letters of credit, the
amount utllized at September 30, 2004 was Rs. 24.560 million (2003: Rs. 18.6%4 milion). The
aggregate facilities of leller of credits are secured against lien over shipping/import documents.

’,ﬂ;l Shakarganj Mills Limited
Shal
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Motes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

13. Creditors, Accrued and Other Liabilities

Thase ara composed of:

Trade creditors - note 13.1
Advances from cuslomers
Security deposils - nofe 13.2

Accrued liabilities

Accrued mark-up on:
Long term finances - secured
Liabiliies against assets subject to finance leases
Shart term borrowings - secured

Workers' profit participation fund - note 13.3
Payable to provident fund

Sales tax payable

Others

{Rupees in Thousand)

2004 2003
163,085 120,120
220,035 30,595
1,399 1,301
29,792 22924
3,54 16,248

2427 -
7,638 6,800
41,306 23,148
11,308 8,646
1,108 4,858
14,011 33,552
69,199 69,542
551,243 314,787

134 Trade creditars include amount due to related parties Rs 12.175 million (2003: Rs 0.755 million).

13.2 These are interest-frea and refundable on completion of contracts.

13.3 Weorkers' Profit Participation Fund
As at Oclober 1
Interest for the year
Provision for the year
Less: Payments made during the year
As al September 30
14, Dividends

141  This reprasents unctaimed dividend

{Rupees in Thousand)

2004 2003
8,646 6,783
91 268
11,308 8,3a7
20,045 15,448
8,737 6,802
11,308 8646

Annual Report 2004
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MNotes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

14.2 The company, effective from current year, has not recognized the final dividend, proposed
subsequent o the year end, as a Hability to comply with the substituled Fourth Schedula to the
Ordinance, as referrad to in note 2.3.1. Such a change in policy has been accounted for
retrospectively and comparative financial statements have been restated in accordance with
the recommended benchmark trealment of IAS 8. Had there been no change, the unappropriated
profit and the current liabilities for the year ended September 30, 2004 would have been lower
and higher respectively by Rs 67,975 million (2003 Rs 43.929 million).

14.3 The Board of Directors have approved a final dividend for the year ended September 30, 2004 of
Rs. 1.75 per share, amounting to Rs, 67,975 million at their meeting held on December 30, 2004
for approval of the membsers at the Annual General Meeting o be held on January 31, 2005,
These financial statements do ot reflect this dividend payable, as explained in nole 14.2 .
15. Contingencies and Commitments
151 Contingencies

Company's share of contingencies of assecialed undertakings is Rs. 13.82 milllon (2003: Rs
36.055 million)

15.2 Commitments in Respect of
(i) Letters of credit other than capital expenditure Rs 15,461 million (2003: Rs.0.615 million),
i) Bank guarantees amounting to Rs 9.295 million (2003: Rs.11.795 million)

(i) Conltract for capital expenditure amouniing to Rs 363.02 million (2003: Rs 388.616
millizn}.

{iv} Company’s share of commilments of associated undenaking is Rs. 11.52 million (2003:
Rs.4.971 million).

Shakarganj Millz Limiied
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Notes to the Accounts for the Year

Ended September 30, 2004

186,

Operating Fixed Assets

16.1 The following is a statement of the operting fixed assels

{Rupess Ia Thossand)
Toaw e E Ao
et e | npercistion | cherge capreciion | Yaka
faw Tasainl | Aam A ity Aam A LT
BLRERIFTION | Ccloar Y, | Addicas | Adwiem- ghembar 3] Dochar i, | Forina Frasmitees | e 33 fapl et 39| daea dptece]
B falttiorn) | anta 2 20 year | Afewemsnt | 3084 E £
Frashokd land BaTe IS o138 186
(1]
Busleings and rasds o eshald land o 1R friieg] 193.3Td v Ll L 1130 LS
(8.4 )
Pt g machiresy AT TTASH - 2006241 OIBOTT TRAGE (A6 L004EE  LO0STTI LS
(43,9060 (131480
st el el e 5873 EE R Rl b LTIR M. R L]
m =
Hwaler, Dt are! wosghBradge
el LR 123 I RUE EELH] 5500 iB2sd 40
Fumitors snd frauwes LrE LS T8T wmATE W P 13188 11407 L]
m i
D Tl 185 s 2457 ] -] B 1,508 W00
Wefrkrn PEOTE FERN BT LB dear 6. TAT 15801 o]
(e8] (244)
Labarpbony B LL kS EL a3 1,158 o] 1455 LY H !
ATl A BTN ] ] T4 ] ™ an w
Litwaney Bocin 1ATs 118 080 5305 0o EATT] 1528 0
2004 T2eRE  JmOT TAMLY  LIEET RELE s} 1998822 1347
{48,500 {10y .
et | 1FTI581 TR AN GRS  124B00TF 1095345 BSOS 3188 110854T 1 14D1TS
o044 (FLri

16.2 The carrying amount of freehold land, building and plant and machinery would have bean Rs
95.357 milllon (2003: Rs 95.357 million), Rs 112.789 million (2003: 104.726 million) and Rs
1,005.494 milllen (2003: 933,252 million) respectively, had hare bean No revalualon.

16.3 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Capital work in progress- unallocated

expenditure
Cost of sales

Administrative expenses

(Rupees in Thousand)

2004 2003

- nole 18.2 1,065 -
- note 28 95,218 80,265
- note 29 14,406 10,701
110,689 90,966
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Notes to the Accounts for the Year

Ended September 30, 2004

16.4 Disposal of Operating Fixed Assots

Partouiars of the sasets okl 1a Coad  dapreclition  walue PGttt Mogs of dinponsd
Pasfbek 5 Prounarad)
Land bir Taghum Abbay 103 - ke 103 hisgotaton
Huidiegn
Godan Tha Pramier insurance Compary of
Pakigtgs 1,18 a1 54 B rurance Ciaim

Plant & Machinery
Ring Framas Cridcent Standand iresstmant Bank Limed TR 30es 488 [} 584 &%) lasna back
Dvera Framgs, Crecent Stardand investment Bank Limied s kb a5 2050 Faly aeed lasna bhack
A GOt Crvacant Stareard Irvaptmact Bank Limisss B . L3l L& Bl it bpane bt
L Filtar [ L [ 3387 124 an TATE S anc leass bat
Cand D500 Ipinrremsl Blaric | emiten 10,302 Ll [ 57 Sl s I Dbt
Fire) Frama. (Moss odel Fi54) GEand & Co. Fanalsted 4080 122 A7 74 Negatiaton
Sehiaftors [Kramer Mogel 15710} Ghan & Co. Fapglaigs) | -] a8 B L] Hegobiaicn
Drawing Frama OF-2C (Mocsl 1083 Ghand & Co. Faisaisbia 431 1514 2408 M3 Hegobason
lelsich Cora Murita e Bpirring Ly, Lahars 424 1,7 2,605 TH Megotation
Banding Machica Deosst Chiphoand Fasory Lahorg o i 02 LE] Megotatien.

[
Syl Hivpter e Aoy Pl ue my Ll 150 Hpgndiaten
Hioeea Ciivic Anjum Mitsn Karachl ey by 8 00 Megotaton
Lana Crdssr Angurn RMostacy Kachl 11 ] o] §EE TS0 Megatiation
Eorpola Cosplia Argurn Moiory Karnsehi arT £} ) 2 st
Bk A oo Kavsehi 1 = ] iay higobuton
Bres Barving book vl balow Fle. $0.080 [T E ] 48 1360
Toasl ] TRE 33380 3403

17.  Assets Subject to Finance Lease
[Rupees In Thausand)
2 A d ook vaie
Coad mn 8t (=T chargsd!  depewcliilen ¥ Rain of
. Addsons  September 33,  Ociobar 1, [Eransfers) B . & . de
] (tranabers) 0 far the yaar T o %
Plant ane] maohinery HLBE 28788 FLLVL ] AT o184 TS 195,808 =15
“ebicked 6,088 L0560 B8R S.437 17851 17378 H1.404 ]
E D08 538 B0485 F TR 1225 24819 AR T 2e0
] 1A AR JLAIT 24507 L00F 12254 ELATE
1122385} FT855)
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MNotes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

18.

17.1 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

(Rupees in Thousand)

2004 2003
Capital work in progress- unaliocated
expenditure - note 18.2 1.011 -
Cost of zales - nota 28 18,719 6,563
Administrative expenses - nate 29 4,889 3138
24619 10,002
Capital Work In Progress
Civil works 40,229 3280
Flant and Machinery - note 18.1 1,015,630 77,340
Adwvances for plant and machinery 266,061 77410
Unallocated expenditure - mole 18.2 40,881 -
Others - mote 18.3 5,273 280
1,368,074 158,290

18.4 It includes an amount of Rs. 58 million {2003: Rs. Nil) being the cost of machinery which is
financed through an advance from a financial institulion as referred to in note & and will be
capitalised upon completion.

18.2 It includes depreciation on operating fixed assets and leased assets of Rs. 1.063 million and
Re. 1.011 milion respectively.

18.3 Itincludes advance payments for assets which are financed by financial institutions as referred
1o in note 6 and will be capitalised upon commissioning of respective assets.,
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Motes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

(Rupees in Thousand)

2004
19.  Investments - Associated Undertakings
Quoted
Crescent Steel and Allled Products Limited
B87.831 (2003: ¥48,048) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 67,935

Equity held 4.06% (2003: 3.72%)
Crescent Sugar Mills and Distillery Limited

il (2003: 955,848) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each -
Equity held Mil (2003; 5.03%)

The Crescent Textile Mills Limited

Mil (2003: 17,561) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each -
Equity held Nil (2003; 0.04%)

Crescent Boards Limited

Ml (2002: 91,960) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each -
Equity held Mil (2003; 0.78%)

Crescent Commercial Bank Limited
(formerly MashreqBank Pakistan Limited)

Ml (2003: 5.010,705) fully paid erdinary shares of Rs 10 each -
Equity held il (2003: 5.73%)

Crescent Jute Products Limited

536,817 (2003: 536,817) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each -
Equity held 3.56% (2003: 3.56%)

Jubilee Spinning and Weaving Mills Limited

Mil (2003: 15,584) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each =
Equily held Nil (2003: 0.22%)

Ungquoted
Crescent Standard Business Management (Private) Limited

1,000,000 (2003: 550,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 sach 9,164
Equity held 20.6% (2003: 48.84%)

77,089

x
e x
2003
4
43,280
]
22,837
B39
1,645
=
-
51,463
A
5,488
125,583

Shakarganj Mills Limited
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Notes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

20.

21.

22,

23.

18.1 Aggregate market value of quoted investments is Rs 63.665 million (2003: R 140,435 million).

18.2 Investments having face value of Rs 0.182 (2003; Rs 0,236 million) are pledged as security
against long term finances.

Thase represent security deposits and are interest free.
{Rupees in Thousand)

2004 2003
Storas, Spares and Loose Tools
Stores (including in transit Rs Mil (2003: Rs 0.738 milllon)) 12,268 35,530
Spares 35,288 19,659
Loose toals 1,811 835
49,367 56,024
Less: Provision for obsolete ilems 1,500 1,500
47 BaT 54,524
Stock-in-Trade
Raw materials - nole 221 98,554 92,704
Work-in-process 9,968 12,329
Finished goods - mofle 22.2 356,068 501,408
464,530 706,446

221 Raw materials amounting to Rs 88.55 million (2003: Rs Mil) are valued at net realisable value.

22.2 Finished goods amounting to Rs 14.564 million (2003: Rs. 20.64 million) are carried at net
realisable value.

22.3 Raw malerials and finished goods amounting to Re 417 44 million ara pledged with lenders as
security against short term bosrowings as referred to in note 12,

(Rupees in Thousand)

2004 2003
Trade Debts- Considered good
Secured 37,129 -
Unsecured 79,666 66,087
116,795 66,087

These relate to nomal business of the company and are interesl free.

Annual anl'-rl 200k
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Notes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

24. Loans, Advances, Prepayments and Other Receivables

Loans to employees - considered good

Advances - considered good = nioite 24,1
To suppliers and contractors

To sugarcana growers

Advances - considered doubiful
To sugarcane growers
Less: Provision for doubtful advances

Due from related parties - considerad good = nole 24.2
Income tax refundable

Sales tax refundable

Prapayments

Margins against bank guarantees

Others

(Rupees in Thousand)

2004 2003
243 330
142,203 a4 191
17,342 20,185
159,545 96,614
2,000 2,000
2,000 2,000
1,788 2,843
20,436 4,916
G4 2,954
19,845 7572
1,394 1.769
45,245 53,850
248,590 172,888

24.1 These relate to normal business of the company and are interest free except advances given fo

sugarcane growers which carmy mark-up ranging from 5% to 9% per annum,

24.2 Due from Related Parties

Crescant Sugar and Distillery Limitad
Crascent Steel and Alled Products Limited

Crescent Standard Business Management (Private) Limited

Shakarganj Mills Limited

(Rupees in Thousand)
2004

2003

395 361
816 700
577 1,782
1,788 2,843
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Motes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

25

Short-Term Investmeants

- Avallable for sala - note 25.1
- Hedd for trading - note 25.2
- Held 1o maturity = note 25.3

254 Awvailable for Sale

Al cost = note 25.1.1
Fair value gaini{loss)

25.1.1 Available for Sale - At Cost
Quotad

Pakistan Industrial Credit & Investment Corporation Limited
20,104 674 (2003: 6,137.875) fully paid ordinary
shares of Rs 10 aach

Safeway Mutual Fund Limited
15,013,540 (2003; 9,326,100) fully paid ordinary
shares of Rs 10 each

Crescent Standard Investment Bank Limited
9,488,749 (2003: 4,870,858) fully paid ordinary
ghares of Rs 10 each

Crescent Leasing Corporation Limited
4,879,521 (2003: 4,319,352) fully paid ordinary
shares of Rs 10 each

Trust Commercial Bank Limited
3,076,923 (2003: 9,6095,939) fully paid ordinary
shares of Rs 10 each

Crescent Knitwear Limited
700,000 (200:3: T00,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

(Rupees in Thousand)

2004

2003

2,050,045 522,992

149,833 -

64,407 -
2,264,285 522,992
1,174,609 544,208
875,146 (21.217)
2,050,045 522,992
617,488 150,908
140,231 89,382
64,084 59,520
71,725 73,361
22,000 105,859
T00 7122
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h Notes to the Accounts for the Year
E Ended September 30, 2004
[ (Rupees in Thousan
2004 20
1 Prudential Discount & Guarantee Heuse Limited
12,000 (2003: 46,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 168
The Premier Insurance Company of Pakistan Limited
40,129 (2003: 40,129) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 5 each 44
Asian Stocks Fund Limited
| 16,125,000 {2003: Nil) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 158,268
Pakistan Strategic Allocation Fund Limited
3,348,000 (2003: Nil) fully paid ordinary shares of Re 10 each 33,460
| Crescent Commercial Bank Limited
(formerly MashregBank Pakistan Limited)
5,010,708 (2003: 5,01 0, 705) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 51,463
| Crezcont Boards Limited
91,960 (2003: 91,960) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 sach 556
| PICIC Commercial Bank Limited
Nil (2003: 910,500) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each -
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited
| Nil (2003: 25,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 sach .
I Shaheen Cotton Mills Limited
Nil (2003: 535,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 sach =

| Crescent Spinning Mills Limited
| Wil (2003: 341,300) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 sach !

Paramount Leasing Limited
| Mil (2003: 22,000) fully paid ardinary shares of Rs 10 each -

AR Pak International Investment Limited
Nil (2003 10,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each -

| Pakistan Oil Fields Limited
il (2003: 1,350) fully paid ardinary shares of Rs 10 each -

| | Pacific Leasing Company Limitad
| Wil (2003: 2,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each -
ol |

|.'{I:;|L:s i o';:,r Shakarganj Mills Limited
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Notes to the Accounts for the Year
b Ended September 30, 2004

r
L (Rupees in Thousand)
2004 2003

Jubilee Spinning and Weaving Mills Limited
15,584 (2003: 15,584) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each - -

Husein Sugar Mills Limited
631 (2003; 631) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each = =

Pakistan International Airlines Corporation Limited
% 26 (2003: 51) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each - -

Muslim Commercial Bank Limited
- Mil (2003: 3,565) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each - =

Ungquoted

International Housing Finance Limited
312,500 (2003: 312,500) fully pakd ordinary shares of As 10 each 2,51 2.51

Crescent Group Services (Private) Limited
220,000 (2003; 220,000} fully paid crdinary shares of Rs 10 each 2,200 2,200

Aslan Capital Management Limited
6 1,000,000 (2003: M) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 10,000

* Crescent Ujala Limited
Wil (2003: 330,000 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each - 3,300

Crescent Standard Business Management (Private) Limited
Mil (2003: 450,000) fully paid crdinary shares of Rs 10 each - 4,475

1,174,899 544,208

Investments having face value of Rs 169.529 million (2003: Rs 40.537 million) are pledged as sacurity
against long term finances, working capital loans and bank guarantees.
- | 252 Held for trading
' Quoted

Pakistan Industrial Credit & Investment Corporation Limited
TEB4,044 (2003; Nil) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 56,058 E

Hub Power Company Limited
1,000,000 (2003: Nil) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 30,950

Annual Report 2004




Motes to the Accounts for the Year

| Ended September 30, 2004
{Rupees in Theusand)
2004 2003

Crescent Leasing Cerporation Limited

1,154,666 (2003: Nil) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 16,916

Dewan Salman Fiber Limited

850,000 (2003: Nil) fully paid ordinary shares of Re 10 each 15,980 -

Pakistan Capital Market Fund Limited

764,500 (2003: Nil) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each T.033 -

Sul Southern Gas Company Limited

235,000 (2003: NI} fully paid ordinary sharas of Rz 10 sach 6,157

Al- Meazan Mutual Fund Limited

488,175 (2003: Nil) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 5,809 -
| Fauji Cement Company Limited
I 361,500 (2003: Nil) Tully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 5,603 -
[ Fauli Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited

150,000 (2003: Nil) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 2870

Crescent Commerelal Bank Limited

150,960 (2003: Nil) fully paid ordinary shares of Re 10 aach 1,502

Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited

7,000 {2003 Nil) fully paid ardinary shares of Rs 10 each 854 -
[ 149,833 =

253 Held to Maturity e —
[ Musharika investment 64,407 -
| =

This represents investment under musharika arrangement with Financial Link Modaraba on
| prafit and loss sharing basis.
|
,:? | Sha !:;,. Shakarganj Mills Limited
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Motes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

26,

Caszh and Bank Balances
At banks on:
= 5aving accounts

- Pak rupees
- Fareign cumency

- cumrent accounts

Iy hand

{Rupees in Thousand)

2004 2003
- nota 26.1
124 24,036
- note 26.2 70 358
494 24,3894
26,807 10,777
27,301 35,171
980 1,245
28,281 36418

264  Profit on balances in saving accounts ranges from 0.14% to 2% per annum,

26.2 Foreign currancy accounts include US Dollars 5,278 {2003: 5,264) and Euros 778 (2003: 778).

Salas
{Rupsas in Thousand)
Suepar Distillery Particls Board Texiile Total
004 103 2004 20y 2004 003 2004 001 004 2003
Gross saks
- Lioead 2402371 2O0GAGAY  wWEIT  EXEOT 509 A TITSE MR JASRTRE 2THOT4
- Expony 08 ATT.ATG  DEM - L11063 MoDH
+ By-produchi ] - 16,485 8400 LEAL 8403
~ inler-sagment FMELR 146008 = x = X
ZTE0462 2200681 E2LTBE  JSROH1 ITEE0 MABE  TEA3M STOSER JGELTS 30016M
L Cornrmigaen o -
sefing agenis 5,599 p-r 27d - 1584 oo 1950 S L2
Sakes lia 351,148 (| ==0.9108 10ErY| A5 L 374 gasG || Tasi3|| aToeES|| 24T
J5ET4E  HMAM 2151 1418 8485 3741 103249 TEMMD  4A58%0  J886TI
ot alen TAOETIT 1908248 GG 2TEED .4s TS 852135 454150 JAS8.FE) 2612909

271 Inter-segment sales have been eliminated from total figures.
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Motes to the Accounts for the Year

Ended September 30, 2004

28. Costof Goods Sold

__{Rupaes In Thousand)
Sugar Déstltbery Particle Board Teatile Total
Fi 003 i a 2004 2003 2004 ol 2004 2003

ile - sigrman . - 2IEIS 1ERGEE B248 LA 1ZEST 8036 s -
Flines marteriais consurmid LESRSS 1,700 208 afMa o = B152T0  MAS65S 2248997 Xu6n007
LECOSM 1 TTODE  2938A3 1805 1240 LEH. EJAOR  JMABSE Z24B0FY 2481007

Salaris, ol g
wifer benedis -note 382 B4ETY 55553 5T 2772 2305 L167 AI WAEM IMEE p0sae
Slores and spate conmed aTME 80,776 5542  20m 1811 1005 1R 1MW 06 BRASE
Cryos and chemicals LLRLC T L BT . L% ] Z08s - = MM TS
Ppcking mansfial sofmumed 4,08 22,764 . = - - T30 B2 aar 23.B88
_‘:? Fusd snd power I A 40108 38196 4,087 4074 ETRE0 BAAGd  20TIE n4gE0
Repains and mainiénasss AT 15,343 5030 2000 17 610 1023 1088 T4 FlGE
Irmarance 3,815 A0TE i) 186 [ 50 2458 1,834 aarr 6,298
Wehichs running and msinteeance 5,041 BB - = - - - - S04 284
Trarvellie sd cornapyance L] 341 - - - - Ghs B2 1455 1,228
Prinding S siasonany THD &40 . - - - . - 750 448
[Fiarsl, riles and Bses B 149 . = . - 4T 544 1,51 [71%]

TSGR ressarch
el rvmbogaiant 41,00 T2ES1 . - - - - - A58 F2ESE
Sl i sod ceveloperani 4,50 4387 - ] - - - - 4505 d BI5
Diepracistion on foed amsaty T BB63F HOET  SDAST a1 a7 aam 10,2 . s0ms
Deprecistion of lsased asses 000a 2005 2008 1,578 e v 60 2,383 18718 BAa
Difar ependas LR 8,343 4 1,831 TG BzZ 1432 1 aAs8 nmz
ZOXATT 207226 AR 24T SN 0,343 13654 B62880 ABASDE ZAG0OZ3 2,652,700
Crsening workin-[recain 3,180 549 . 358 5573 3ara|| zazel| nrees
Lawic Closing weri-ioprocass 1538 2 . 3,068 6,245 LR 0588) | 1235
1,645 F& L - = 138 [¥8E) BT (238 2,381 ()
Cond of goods prosuced L0512 074437 IBED4Y 247802 nmn 10538 BEL2OE  LE21GT ZATZIM 2E42008

Opning stoek of

finiatesd goos Sm3 e 5T R1aEG 3,850 10588  Mgas TEXN  BMADE  3vBes
LHEIE 266691 443801 ZEOME MISE1 A4 BRREEY  SEREID 3ATIEMN 2880 E55

Loss Closing sack of
Tt goods AN 521,003 8510 S5TE0 5170 JBI0 4584 DOAAS JSO06E  BO1.S08
ZHSAN LTELETS 43420 INASSE  BSAE1 0364 BEAIM 445438 317,83 2382487

281 Inter-segment purchases have been eliminated from tatal figures.
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Motes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

28.2 Salaries, wages and other benefils include following in respect of retiremeant banefils:

{Rupees in thousand)

Pension fund Gratuity fund
2004 2003 2004 2003

Current service cost 3Baz - 850
Interest cost for the year 3,814 - 872 =
Expected return on plan assels {4,018) {1,146} -
Recognition of past service cost 854 - = =
Recognilion of lransilional (asset) (174) - (553)

4,120 - 23 -

In addition to above, salaries, wages and other benefits include provident fund contribution af

Rs 2.022 million (2003: Rs 1.839 million) by the company.

29. Administrative Expenses

Salaries, wages and other banefits
Rapairs and mainlenance
Insurance
Vehicle running and maintenance
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and slationary
Electricity and gas
Telephone, postage and tetegram
Legal and professional charges
Consultancy and advisory services
Rent, rales and taxes
Staff training and development
Entertainment
Subscriptions
Advertisaments
Regisiered office expenses

e Ohher receivables written off
Depreciation on fixed assels
Depreciation on leased assels
Others

(Rupees in Thousand)

2004 2003
- note 29.1 44,080 38,151
4,256 3,703
1,800 1,502
2,785 2,016
11,337 6,015
2,207 1,280
E73 804
2,946 2623
- note 29.2 4,039 2,045
7.383 4812
4,040 2,138
326 239
268 188
4,230 291
52 739
T26 726

5,745 =
14,406 10,701
4,889 3,139
3,728 2673
120,590 86,403
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| MNotes to the Accounts for the Year
| Ended September 30, 2004

‘ 29.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include following in respect of retirerment banefits:

{Rupees in thousand)

| Pension fund fund
2004 2003 2004 2003

Current service cost 2,454 - 568 -
Interest cost for the year 2580 - 583 -

Expected roturn on plan assets 2,717) - (765) .

Recognition of past service cost 578 - - -

| Recognilion of ransitional (asset) (117) . (369) -
‘ 2,788 - 17 %

In adelion to above. salaries, wages and other benelits include provident fund contribution of
Rs 0.768 millon (2003: Rs 0.628 milion) by S comparny:

(Rupees in Thousand)
2004 003
292 Professional Services
The charges for professional services Include the following
In respect of auditors' services for:
| Statutory audit ars 20
Aucit of Workers' Profit Participation Fund and
other certificatles =1 30
Half yearly roveew 125 50
Cost avdit &0 *
| Out of pocke! expenses a 18
‘ 680 418
‘ 30. Distribution and Selling Costs
Salares, wages and other banofits = nole 30.1 1,581 961
Freaght and lorwarding 38,028 24978
Handling and distribution 1629 2685
Loading and unioading charges 1,619 1,185
Sales promotion expenses 501 815
Insuranca 2,487 366
Cthars 982 2,080
48,827 33210

30.1 Salaries. wages and other benefits inchude provident fund contribution of Rs 01,338 milion (2003
s 0.274 milion) by the comgany.

i % | Stakargan; Mith Limiscd
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L Motes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004
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31. Other Operating Expenses

Workers Profit Participation Fund

Logs on sale of fixed assels

Loss on sale of raw cotion

Loss on sale of investments in associated underakings

Diminuticn in value of investmenis

Mearger expenses

Social action program

Not axchange loss

. Donations -note 31.1
Others

e

b

{Rupees in Thousand}

311 Mone of the directors and their spouses had any intarest in any of the donees

32. Other Oparating Income
Income From Financial Assets

Profit on sale of invesiments

Unnealised gain on investmenis held for trading

Unrealised gain on 'available-for-sale” investiments
of former Crescent Ujala Limited

Dividend income

Relurn on bank deposils

¢ =

Income From Non-Financial Assets

Scrap sales
Profit on sale of fixed assals
Rental incoma

a*' Commissian on sale of ferlilizer
Amartisation of deferred income
Underwriling commissicn
Others

12004 2003
11,308 8,397
6,696 .
s a74
13,728 -
- 630
742 .
3,212 =
2,721 -
9,729 8,823
605 -
48,741 18,324
82,479 46,902
18,048 :
2 6,862
49,587 13,231
2,983 8451
153,097 73,446
9,453 8,515
E 3,817
72 59
72 118
3,037 -
113 :
5,354 1.214
18,101 13,723
171,198 87,169
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MNotes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

(Rupeas In Thousand)
2004 2003

Interest and mark-up on:
P Long term finances - secured —= 55,955 70,950
= Shorl term borrowings - secured 51,323 47 565
[ - Workers' profit participation fund a1 268
« Employees” providont fund 7o 410
- Finance lease : 17,478 18,976
Bank charges, commission and excise duty 7.089 7.632
Lease termination charges B 2078
2743 a.008
135029 150,877
3. Provision for Taxation
For the year
- Curront 20,017 14,000
- Defarrad (8,173) 15,708
| 11,844 29.708
| Prior yoar
- Caprront - -
- Defermad 42,708 -
42,708 =
54,552 24,708

34.1 In view of the available tax losses., the provisaon for current ation represents the menimum tax
| e undar section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Such minimum tax is avaiable for
sat off aganst normal tax Eabdity that may artse in fve succeeding tax years.

For purposes of curment taxation the tax losses available for camy forward as at Septernber 30,
2004 ane estimalod approximately at Rs 403 milion (2003: Rs 332 million), including assessed
tax losses of Rs 262 million (2003: Rs 262 million).

%
G4

|
! Shukargan) Mills Limited
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Motes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

2004 2003
% age % age

34.2 Tax charge reconciliation

Mumerical reconciliation between the average effective tax rate
and Ihe applicable tax rale

Applicabla tax rate

Effect of:

- Income chargeable to tax al lower rates
- Inceme not chargeable 10 tax

- Income under presumptive lax regime

- Qihers

Effect of change in prior year's lax

(9.58) (16.35)
Average effective tax rate charged to profit and loss account 2542 18.65
2004 2003
35. Earnings per share
35.1 Basic earnings per share
Profit aftar taxation attributable to
ardinary shareholders Rupaas 160,017,000 128,578,000
Mumber of ordinary shares in issue
during tha year Mumber 38,843,029 38,843,029
Eamings per share- basic Rupsas 412 334

35,2 Diluted sarnings/{loss) per share

There is no dilution effect on the basic earnings per share of the company as the company has
no such commitments.
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MNotes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

Remunoration of Chief Executive and Executlvas

36.1 Tmmm:huwhhm&hmhrmmw
benefits, to the Chief Executive and executives of the Company is as lollows:

= {Rupees in Thousand)

Description | Executives
Managerial remuneration - 1,820 12,390 6,481
Contribution to provident fund,

Gratuity and pension funds = 120 2137 277
Produchon incentves - - 435 56
House rent - BE4 4732 2455
Lhdities - 192 1.238 648
Reimbursable expenses - 1T T22 323
Others - 48 46 5

- 3321 21,701 10,245
MNumber of Persons 1 1 a8 5

362 Cheel execufive’s remuneration for the year ended September 30, 2003 represents remuneration
and other benefits provided 1o chief executive of formes Crescent Uala Limited

36.3 The Company aiso provides its chial executive and some of its execufives wilh company
maintained cars.

36.4 Aggregate amount chargad in the accounts lor the year for fee to 7 dinectors (2003: 8 directors)
was Rs. 185,000 (2003: Rs. 115,000).

g |




Notes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

ar.

38.

Cash used in Operations

Prafit before taxation

Add:  Adjustment for non eash charges and other items:

Depreciation on fixed assets

Depreciation on leased assets

Amaortisation of defermed income

Loss/(Profit) on sale of fixed assets

(Profit) on sale of investments

Loss on sale of investments in associales

Unrealised gain on investments held for trading

Unrealised gain on ‘available-for-sale’ investments
of former Crescent Ujala Limited

Share of income from associates

Provision for employees' retirement benefits

Dividend income

Finance costs

Profit before working capital changes

Effect en cash flow due to working capital changes:

- Decreasel(increase) in stores and spares

- Decreasel(increase) in stock in trade

- (Increase)/decrease in trade debts

- (Increase)/decrease in loans, advances, prepayments
and other receivables

- (Increase) in short lerm investments

- Increase in creditors, accrued and other liabilities

MNumber of Employees
Number of employees as at September 30

(Rupees in Thousand)

2004 2003
214,569 159.23:'
110,689 890,966
24,619 10,002
(3,037) Z
6,696 (3,832)
(82,479) (46,902)
13,728 -
(18,048) =
- (6,862)
(16,013) (30.519)
6,948 -
(49,587) (13,231)
135,029 150,977
128,539 150,559
343,108 309 885
6,657 (20,339)
241,856 (424,622)
{50,708) 41,617
(35,245) 6oy
(744,403) (65,734)
218,298 7.412
(363,545) (460,969)
(20,437) (151,084)
2004 2003
Number
1,402 1,295
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Notes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

39. Related Party Disclosures

Amaunts due to and from related parties are shown under the relevant noles to the accounts and
nmmmmﬁmmmmmmwm

Mmmnmammwummm prervad in
m%mmmmhl\eﬂm‘um.

Relationihip with Hature of Pricing (Rupees in Thousand)
| the Company Transactions Mathod 2004 2003
I Associatad
‘ company Dividends roceived Not applicatio 9,326 4,189
Purchase of goods: Comparasie uncontroliad prce method 24,725 3,188
Puschate of Sarvices Comparabie uncontroded prce method 6,650 T.652
Sale of yam Comparatie uncontrodesd prcg metod 9,880 ism
Shae of commen
expETES Compargble uncontrodied prce method 2458 1262
2004 2003
40. Capacity and Production
Sugar:
| On the basis of 160 days M. Tons 108,800 108,800
Actual production M. Tons 136,813 127,060
|
Distillery: "
On the basis of 270 days working Litres 32,400,000 21,600,000
Actual production Litres 35,408,000 26,233,000
Particle board:
[ On the basis of 200 days working Cubic meter 6,000 6,000
Actual production Cubic meter 5.025 1.668
Textile:
Capacity {converted in 208 counts) Kgs. 8,899,263 8,498,993
Actual production (converted in 20s counts) Kgs. B.875,560 8,248,640

40,1 The low preduction of particle board was due o shortage of baggase.

Jqp;p I Shakarganj Mills Lmited
a8
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MNotes to the Accounts for the Year

Ended September 30, 2004

41.

414

L3 ]

413

414

1.5

ELE ]

Business Segments Information

__{Rupees in Thousand])
Sugar Distillery Particle Board Toutile Todal
pil 2003 2004 003 o etk i 2003 ol ik |
Hed malen. -note 2T ZA0RTIT  1E0ED4E  GORGAE  33T.E8D 31484 D065 GRS AS4153 3498183 2E12.0ER
=
- Costolsales  -role 38 2300411 1, T4E5TE 434204 20488 M40 035 BEAIZE  44G03S NI 2282487
s 1BAS06 IBOSAR 1BAISA  1243E 8073 201 23808 45021 MOSK  0052
+ hominigiratien
WA - e 20 0,382 52 1765 L ary 5TH E | IIATA| 1 B 400
- DRaniton s
seling costs - note 30 BATH B4 | om0 12y T 1, 1) | seaaT | 33210
TEERY 5E. M0 S5 500 1,045 BT AN 28 16347 NBEID
Tageant retuls WA 101282 WNTHS  BETR -] [140) (0385 2000 2N)E 080
nher pagerand sales and purchusas
It aegmiend ikl B puithises Fave boen shminales rom Solal figares.
Bagmant asseis OB 137142 SET6ET  TMED L) 19,820 536,088 014TOZ I3 2244404 |
Unasocatng assen 3,053,030  S5,087
ELABT.PE 3, 16,801
Segmin Habditas 10084 35T AN AN0564 1223 1328 3 ;aEz MIATE 1880371 387840
UnisBocated kabibies 45170 2.BOBSS1
8187281 J10EA0T
Capital enpendilure 1B 51,394 gaos 2 1,135 = ATAS6  10ATE MAST 180081
UnaBocaled S70F e
BESLE 444042
Dapreciation|Amoartieation B2 0158 TARe 1203 21 47 ATTED 158D NS08 A9SAD
Ueasocaled 19500 11,088
135008 100068
Sacondary Feporing femat
SasjFradil Fevanu from exiensl
cusioeran By geographical ead
I e Folorans:
Disilary axporl sabes « Europs - = 4TTATE U0 - . . - ATTATE 260,084
Suger sxpor] saies - Othery 36084 = = i s E = = 36,084 =
Locad waien 135815 1, TS0208  TRMTES  EATEE  314B4  20TES  SRRI3S 404158 2584700 IMIS0S
ZATIA99 1,TE0208 GOZGAS JITBA0 31484 R0TES  BE2IDS AMISE 3406183 2612899
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Notes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004
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421 Fenancu Resk Mansgement Dtyectves

The company fnances &5 cporations Tvough equlty, bomowings and managoment of workeng capdal
Wil @ vitw i Maintaining a reasondtie mix between the vanous sources of finance 1o minimiss risk.
Taken as a whole, risks arising from the company’s financlal Instruments s limited as there is no
significant exposure to market risk in nespect of such instruments. The company manages its exposure
o nancial nsk in the following manner:

HER TR




MNotes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

43.

{a) Concentration of Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if
counter parties failed completely 1o perform as contracted. The company's credit risk primarily
altributable to ils trade debis and its balances at banks. The credit risk on liquid funds is
limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings. Out of tha
iotal financial assets of Rs 2,510 million, the financial assets which are subject to credit risk
amount (o Rs 2,508 million, The company believes that it is not exposed to major
concentration of credit risk as exposure is spread over a large number of countar parties in
case of irade debts. To manage exposure to credit risk, the company applies credit Bmils o
its customers.

b

—_—

Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial ingtrumant will fluctuate due to changes
in foraign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables
exist due o fransactions wilh foreign buyers and suppliers. The company believes that itis
not exposed to major foreign exchange risk.

(e} Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the rsk that the valee of a financial instrument will I'Iud.uata due to
changes in market interest rates. The company borrows at fixed and market based rales
and as such the risk is minimized. Significant interest rate and cash flow risk exposures ang
primarily managed by contracting floor and cap of interest rate.

(d

—

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will ancounter difficully in raiging funds to meel
cemmilmeants associated with financial instrurments. The company lollows an effective cash
management and planning policy 1o ensure availability of funds. The company also aims at
maintaining fexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

42.2 Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities
The carrying values of all financial assets and liabiliies refloected in the financial statements
approximate their fair values. Fair valua is determined on the basis of objective evidence al
each raporling date.

Date of Authorization of Issue

Thesa financial stalements were authorised for issue on December 30, 2004 by the Board of Directors
of the company.

Annunl Beport 2004 4;(
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Motes to the Accounts for the Year
Ended September 30, 2004

44, Corresponding Figures

Previous year's figures have been rearmanged, wherever necessary for the purposes of comparison
and include corresponding figures of former Crescent Ujala Limited after alimination of inter-campany
balances and transactions. Significant re-arrangements made are as follows;

(Rupeas in
thousand)
Re-classification of Mon-participatery redeemable capital-secured
to short term bormowings-secured 150,000
Classified as creditors, accrued and other liabilities
- Workers' profil participation fund 8,485
Classified as loans, advances, prepaymenis and olher receivables
= Provision for taxation 24226

The above figures have been re-arranged as the re-classification made is considered mare appropriate
for the purpose of prasentation.

fet=

R PR R
Chief Executive — Chairman

Shakarganj Mills Limived
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Pattern of Shareholding

As at September 30, 2004

FORM 34

Mo. of Shareholding Total shares
Shareholders Fram To Hald
242 1 100 BT12
242 101 SO0 7046
a2 501 1,000 127 202
172 1.001 £.000 383 540
28 500 0,000 387 T0
20 10,001 15,000 AT HIS
8 15,001 20,000 136,144
12 20,000 25,000 275,588
[ 25.001 30,000 168,672
12 30,001 35,000 389,624
7 35.001 40,000 267288
[ 40,001 45,000 262,879
4 45,001 50,000 186 584
4 50,001 55,000 208928
3 35,001 &0 000 170,819
3 60,001 55,000 188211
2 T0.001 75,000 145 360
2 80,001 85,000 165,263
3 85,001 90,000 262 928
2 95,001 100,000 187,350
1 105,001 110,000 108,033
1 140,001 145,000 141 420
| 145,001 150,000 150,000
1 155,001 160,000 157 06
2 165,001 170,000 370
1 175.001 150,000 180,000
1 180,001 185 000 180,074
1 VES.001 190,000 186,432
1 215,001 220,000 216,665
i 260,001 265,000 264,224
1 280,001 285,000 281,300
1 290,001 295,000 294,108
| 205,001 300,000 296,500
1 325,001 330,000 J25.444
1 400,001 405,000 405,000
1 735,001 740,000 T35 TS
1 Tr50m 780,000 Tre.ne
1 1,175,001 1,180,000 1,180,000
1 1,445,001 1,450,000 1,447 201
1 1,855,001 1,880,000 1915496
1 2,030,001 2,035,000 2,035,000
1 3,230,001 3,235,000 3,230,848
1 3,525,001 3,530,000 3,528,702
1 7,520,001 7,525,000 7.523.487
1 8,650,001 B.695,000 8,683 828
1,007 38842009
S — —_—
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Pattern of Shareholding
As at September 30, 2004

Catepories of Shamshokiers
51  Direclors, Chief Exscutive Officer, Their Spouss and Chikdren
Chial Executive
Mr. Ahsan M. Saleam
Direcions
M Khaict Barshir
M Marhar Karm

M ARy Ayt

‘ 53 NIT & ICP (Hame Wise Detail)

Sharsholders More Than 10 percent
Cruseant Siandard Business Managemsant (v} Lid,
Masonal Barik of Pakitan, Trustes Deptt.

i':ﬁ | Shakarganj Mills Limited

104 |

180924

59
Fop

T.TR8
12547
Lo irg

0T

350,501

167 200
7523 487

1515458

43
i
08
453
[ &y
0.6

16,428,033

34,13

LTIT 558

EALLES
mn
1,459,087
3,167,140
157

s 8 88 Es|
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7523487
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